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[/ 0 t 0 & 2002 was a year of tremendous evolution for On Assignment; a year in which we laid much of the
Y LS § foundation for On Assignment'’s next chapter of success.

ig“ We renovated our business model to successfully address medium and long-term opportunities in the
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changing environment of specialty temporary staff. The marketplace for temporary scientific and
medical staff has become very dynamic in the last 12 months. Downward economic pressures on our clients, increased competition for clients
and the growth of competitors and consolidation in the staffing industry now characterize the marketplace. For On Assignment, this means that
we are building solutions to conquer these challenges as we address the opportunities for successful growth in the years ahead. In order to do
so, we have written cur prescription for success by listening very carefully to our clients, temporary professionals and employees.

OUR CLIENTS ARE TELLING US of their frustrations with a highly fragmented staffing industry, and that they want simplicity and
efficiency. Clients today want to turn to a few trusted suppliers to obtain the quality temporary staff they need. We responded to their priorities
in several ways in 2002. In the Spring, we acquired a centralized supplier of temporary nursing and allied staff to complement our existing local
offices supplying allied healthcare professionals. As a result, hospitals and other members of our diverse group of healthcare clients can now
turn to On Assignment for essentially any of their needs for temporary nurses, medical, surgical and operating room technicians, radiology
technologists, cytotechnologists, administrators and financial specialists. Throughout the year we integrated our existing operational divisions
with this new centralized cagacity so that by year's end we had a single, integrated sales force that presents clients with face-to-face sales and
account management, giving a personalized single point of contact, all uncommon and distinctive in our marketplace.

OUR TEMPORARY PROFESSIONALS ARE TELLING US that they are looking for career partners. There is an acute shortage
of nurses and allied healthcare staff, and we must always work hard to find quality scientists. Unless we keep pace with the needs of temporary
employees, we risk our ability to deliver guality staff to our clients. Today all levels of On Assignment management, beginning with me, spend
time in group meetings with temporary professionals so that we can clearly understand and respond to what “career partner” means to them.
We're responding by providing educational opportunities, helping them manage the nuances of personal finance as a “temp,’ increasing the
hours we are available to counsel and place them, all the while maintaining a live voice
on our end, and a relationship with every temporary employee. We are going to see to
it that temporary work with On Assignment is no longer a “second class” opportunity,
but instead is a more professionally and personally fulfilling career development option.

And did we ever learn from our employees this past year! We initiated and maintained
a structured and responsive process to collect their experiences and guidance, and have
acted expeditiously to respond. They showed us how our lack of technology was
handicapping our efficiency and giving our competitors an advantage. By year's end we
had moved our local offices and California back-office and corporate operations on to a
new, state-of-the-art PeopleSoft information platform. We filled basic needs like
Internet access and e-mail, and moved into the future with portable connectivity and
a comprehensive fixed and wireless telephony solution. We have created new efficiencies,
and captured new corporate-wide savings, and we are just beginning to exploit our new
technologies.

FINALLY, WE BEGAN CRAFTING ON ASSIGNMENT into a "best place
to work.” We introduced a new management team and brought senior experience and a
fresh perspective 10 bear on this dynamic industry. They responded by empowering our
very experienced market leaders with leadership and management of their teams;
everyone worked together to implement new team-based compensation programs and
communications systems. The results have been quick to see, and terrific! In a field force
with the highest performance requirements in On Assignment's history, turnover has
dropped dramatically.

We spent a year listening, accelerating our evolution and building. Today, the big changes
have been accomplished, and in 2003 we will be heads down executing a clear vision
and strategy, but listening carefully along the way. On behalf of the employees of
On Assignment, the Board of Directors and myself, thank you for contributing to
On Assignment's success this past year.

Respectfully,

[t

Joe Peterson, MD
President & Chief Executive Officer
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WE WILL CONSISTENTLY EXCEED THE EXPECTATIONS OF ALL OF ODUR PARTNERS
WE WILL DELIVER THE BEST EMPLDOYEE SOLUTIONS FOR OUR CLIENTS
WE WILL PROVIDE CAREER PARTNERSHIP AS OUR TEMPORARY PROFESSIDNALS DEFINE T

WE WILL BEAT THE COMPETITION BY LISTENING VERY CAREFULLY AND RESPONDING VERY EFFECTIVELY TO THE NEEDS

AND PRIORITIES OF OUR TEMPDORARY PRDOFESSIONALS AND CLIENTS

Jur Values

WE BELIEVE ...

... THAT EVERY INDIVIDUAL CAN AND MUST IMPACT QUR SUCCESS
.. THAT THE BEST SOLUTIONS HAVE NO CREATIVE LIMITS
...THAT BRAVERY IS ESSENTIAL TO ODUR SUCCESS
... THAT WE CONTROL DUR DESTINY
L THAT WINNING IS FUN
W INTHE POWER OF PERSONAL RELATIONSHIPS
. IN QUALITY, EXCELLENCE AND INTEGRITY
...IN THE POWER OF CONVERSATION

...IN LEADING BY EXAMPLE



THE CLIENTS

ON ASSIGNMENT serves a diverse collection of healthcare clients, including hospitals, integrated delivery systems, clinics, physician offices,
managed care organizations ard third-party administrators. In doing so, we address occupations that are “high-value,” which generally means a type
of staff — like operating room nurses - that are essential to maintaining the hospital’s ability to care for patients and maintain business and revenue.
By targeting such mission-critical occupations we are able to compete successfully on speed, quality and service without compromising our margins.

Today our healthcare clients face large shortages of these mission-critical staff, and the shortages are likely to continue for years to come.
Dissatisfaction with nursing and allied healthcare careers is causing these professionals to abandon clinical care just as the aging population and
their healthcare needs are increasing significantly. The same dissatisfaction is preventing significant growth in enrolliment in nursing and allied
healthcare education. The result is a marketplace crowded with staffing companies of dramatically varying quality; clients who are inundated with
solicitations and options; and nomadic temporary nurses and allied professionals.

Our vision at On Assignment is to bring a unigue solution to both clients and temporary professionals that is clear, simple and efficient. In 2002,
we made great progress crafting this vision into commercial reality.

Historically, On Assignment has provided allied and financial staff to our healthcare clients through local staffing offices manned by Staffing
Consultants who recruit and manage both clients and temporary professionals. These local staffing operations provide very valuable personalized
relationships with our clients when most national healthcare staffing companies sell over the telephone. In 2002, we increased the efficiency of
these local operations by consolidating pre-existing “silo” divisions of Diagnostic Imaging, Clinical Lab and Healthcare Financial Staffing into a
single Healthcare Division. We condensed inefficient offices, trimmed our physical locations, and flattened our field management structure. At the
same time we added nurses 10 our mix of temporary healthcare staff through the acquisition of Health Personnel Options Corporation (“HPO"),
in the Spring of 2002.

THE AcQuisiTioON aF HPD puts us much further towards our goal of being a “full-service” provider to our healthcare clients. Today,
we are distinctive in the healthcare staffing marketplace in the following ways:

* We have national scope vet sell face-to-face, one client at a time

¢ We offer all mission-critical occupations

¢ We provide a single person as point of contact for sales and account management activities

* We have both local and centralized recruiting operations

IN 2003 we will continue to develop our vision of becoming a comprehensive partner to our healthcare clients. Our HPO acquisition expanded
our capacity to include the temporary staffing of nurses. Today we only provide highly specialized short-term travel nurses: mature, well-gualified
nurses that leave on a moment's notice to work for 4 to 12 weeks at a hospital or other facility. They are a great entrée to clients, but there are
other pieces of the nursing staffing puzzle we must offer to our clients. Our strategy is to keep broadening the types of mission-critical staff we offer.




As we expand our service offerings, we will refine the administrative efficiency and simplicity we offer to our clients. Our new PeopleSoft enterprise
system, along with a sophisticated web presence, will allow nearly complete online interactivity. We will also be deploying automated solutions for
timecards and payroll, as well as nurse evaluations and feedback.

OVERALL, WE ARE BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS, not just selling “people”” In a sea of changing options and dynamics we are
looking to expand our client base and deepen our existing relationship with every one of our clients. As we go forward, this strategy will sharpen
our understanding of their issues and provide the most efficient means of generating growth.

THE TEMPORARY PROFESSIONALS

Professional nomads. Highly empowered free agents. It's hard to describe the dramatic evolution of how medical professionals ~ nursing and allied
staff — work on a temporary basis. They surf the web continuously looking for the best option; they know they are in demand and, in many ways,
in control. They make more money working as temporary employees than they do working full time; it provides variety and independence, new
professional growth and, frequently, travel opportunities. In many ways they have made very real the saying, "it's not just a job, it's an adventure.”

We understand their opportunities and their issues — such as working for multiple staffing companies in one year and accumulating multiple 401 (k)
contributions and tax receipts — and we are crafting a partnership with them to help them manage these and other challenges. Temporary work
comes not only with challenges, but also with opportunities. Professional growth can be accelerated by experience in different intensive care units,
for example, and we're helping our temporary professionals build their résumés with premeditation and care. Experience must be interspersed
with formal education and certification, and so we're providing educational resources and opportunities that fit their “on the go” lifestyles.

PARTNERSHIP IS WHAT WE’RE BUILDINGS, one step at a time. In order to get there, every manager at On Assignment participates
in focus groups and feedback sessions with nurses and allied professionals, and later feedback sessions about what we've attempted in order to
find out what we've actually accomplished. As we go forward we intend to continue to strengthen our career partnership with our temporary
professionals through this combination of creative initiative and first-hand feedback.
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ON ASSIGNMENT’S Lab Support division operates in the United States and Europe, and places scientists on temporary assignments in
many industries including biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage, chemical, personal care, petrochemical, agribusiness and other
science industries. Our temporary professionals include chemists, biologists, biochemists, microbiologists, molecular biologists, food scientists, lab
assistants and other skilled technicians on temporary assignments that vary from three to six months. Lab Support recruits staff and clients from
local offices in the United States and Europe, operated by local Staffing Consultants and overseen by a single layer of Regional Managers.

Lab Support is the “original” activity of On Assignment, founded in 1985 and demonstrating stunning growth over the years. Today we are a
multinational company with an industry reputation for quality, speed and personalized service. As a provider of specialty science staff, we
address a client base that is economically sensitive, and has been under economic pressure for the past two years. During that time we have
retooled Lab Support to deliver ever more compelling guality and service while maintaining our traditionally best-in-class margins.

IN 2002 we narrowed our complement of Staffing Consultants in Lab Support to our superior performers, and condensed these experienced
Staffing Consultants into markets least affected by the dismal economy. As with our other local operations, we pushed management responsibility
- and thereby performance control, and rewards - out into local teams and a team-based compensation plan. As with our healthcare division, these
structural changes have ended high turnover. We are now building a next generation of business development skills into this leaner but much more
stable workforce. Lab Support will also benefit from our investment in PeopleSoft, most visibly in our ability to interact electronically with clients on
billing and administrative issues, but also in providing us with a detailed collection of client information.

FINALLY, as we close our year of great change, we recognize that Lab Support, as the emeritus division within On Assignment, has much to
lend in the terms of best practices for field force motivation and management, and we wili be working in the year ahead to export these practices

to Healthcare Staffing.




LISTENING: LAB SUPPORT LCLIENTS/EMPLOYEES...

—C

“I turned to Lab Support early in my career to help find the right job for me. [ was quickly placed with a large beverage company where | gained
valuable skills in the quality assurance field. Then | relocated and called Lab Support for assistance again. Once more they found the right match.
Now | am the lab director for that company and always use Lab Support to help me find qualified candidates to fill needs in our growing QA and
R&D laboratorfes. As a former employee and now a client, | have a unique perspective on the benefits of Lab Support. | experienced their support
and investment in me as an employee. With their help, my career path was well defined and more practical for today's business environment.
Now, as a client, | see the value in letting Lab Support perform the recruiting for qualified technicians and scientists. | can devote my time to
managing the QA and R&D programs, having the reassurance that a Lab Support Staffing Consultant is looking for candidates whose skills match
our company’s needs.”

— Jennifer Bencz, R. L. Schreiber Company

“I highly recommend Lab Support for scientific staffing needs. Having been both an employee and a client, | can attest to the high quality service
provided to both clients and employees. They screen candidates thoroughly, work to provide a good match between employees and clients and
strive to ensure both parties are happy with the arrangement. They provide intelligent, diligent and qualified individuals whenever | need someone
with a scientific background. I've hired all the people they've sent me. . .”

— Quality Assurance Manager, Company in the Food/Beverage Industry
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2002 wAS A YEAR OF GREAT EVOLUTION, not only in the way we do business, but also in the tools we bring to bear on new
opportunities. Overall, our infrastructure is designed to minimize administrative tasks and maximize the support of people who contribute directly
to making assignments and driving revenue. We began the year focusing upon those administrative and technology operations that added value to
clients or temporary professionals, or directly supported the growth of the business; we eliminated spending on indirect value investments or
inefficient operations, and substantially reduced administrative head count at both our headquarters and newly acquired Cincinnati HPO operations.
At the same time, we made very focused investments in specific resources. A summary of our initiatives for 2002 includes:

TECHNOLOGY

This year we successfully moved our local offices and back office operations onto the PeopleSoft enterprise platform. By year's end all tasks had
been transitioned onto our new system without disruption of our business. This investment brings a single, state-of-the-art solution to replace
multiple aging proprietary systems. It will deliver a valuable new interface to our clients and employees, efficiency to our operations that will
increase throughout 2003, and a business continuity solution. It will also provide a great advance in the information available to management to
operate the business. We alsc reduced costs and increased our communications capabilities by engaging Sprint to provide a seamless voice and
data communications solution, which was completed in the late summer.

FINANCE

Following the completion of the HPO acquisition, we squarely focused on staying ahead of evolving corporate governance practices and the
direct and indirect implications of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. With our auditors, counsel and non-executive Directors, we have deepened our internal
controls, broadened independent audit functions, and more broadly engaged our Audit Committee in our work to maintain an exemplary model
of governance.

MARKETING

On Assignment’s challenge during the past three years has expanded to include not only the recruitment of scarce employees but also the
competitive capture of clients in both complex and pressured demand environments. In 2002, we addressed our need for professional marketing
skills to complement our sales resources by creating a centralized marketing department in California. Led by a senior marketer with staffing
industry experience, we are now pacing and matching the needs of our sales force and healthcare recruiters with newfound efficiency.

PEOPLE SUPPORT

As we have evolved our selling and recruiting operations, we have carefully focused on the support we provide to every employee. The new,
stable field force has allowed a dramatic cutback in the need for basic recruitment and training operations, and we have both captured savings and
shifted our investment to the advanced sales and management training that will increase our efficiency and effectiveness. Technology investments
have allowed us to downsize our call center without sacrificing personal relationships between On Assignment and clients, temporary professionals
and employees. Looking ahead, we expect to make further efficiency gains throughout 2003.
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From left to right:

Mike Tatum, Senior Vice President,
Lab Support

Kerry Rafferty, Senicr Vice President,
Solutions Group

Michael Jones, Senior Vice President,
Healthcare Business Development

Dr. Joe Peterson, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Ron Rudolph, Executive Vice President,
Finance and Chief Financial Officer




FEATURED FROM THE FIELD

On Assignment is presented to clients and
temporary professionals by sophisticated,
experienced Staffing Consultants and
Executives. Here are two examples of our
local and travel executives whose personal
excellence is representative of our entire
field force.

Jeanette Figueroa,
Staffing Consuitant,
Lab Support

A degreed scientist and
lab professional for over
nine years, Jeanette
wanted to make a difference in people's
lives. That's why she joined On Assignment
nearly four years ago. As she says: "With
On Assignment | help people build careers.
The best part of the job is when they call and
thank you for hefping them!”

Jeanette believes in giving back to her
industry and community. She's been a
leader in the Association for Women in
Science, Central Jersey chapter, for over
three years, and served as President in
2002. The association promotes women
in science through providing college
scholarships and mentoring students.

Presently studying for a Master's in
Public Heaith, Jeanette has a BS in
Biology with a minor in Chemistry.

Tanya McClendon,

VP Clinical Services and
Chief Nurse Executive,
Healthcare Staffing

A 32-year nursing veteran
with an MHA, Tanya is the
link between On Assignment nurses and
hospital clients, helping to ensure that
clients receive a guality clinical solution to
their staffing needs.

A special focus for Tanya is
On Assignment's mission-critical nurse
staffing operation that provides whole teams
of nurses to open new intensive care units.
Tanya provides leadership and experience to
our recruiters and account managers, and
directly supports new clients, as well as
chairs the On Assignment Peer Review
Committee.

Tanya has been with On Assignment
since 2000. She has experience working
as a consultant for the Department of
Justice through the Public Heaith Service,
and worked for the Department of Defense.
Tanya holds an MS in Healthcare
Administration from Columbia Southern
University and is on the Board of Directors
of the Faulkner County Red Cross.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jeremy Jones 2.3
Chairman
Chairman of the Board, Byram Healthcare

Joe Peterson, MD'!
President and Chief Executive Officer of
On Assignment, Ing.

Senator William E. Brock 3
Chairman, Intellectual Development Systems, Inc.

Elliott Ettenberg o
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of ¢
Customer Strategies Worldwide, LLC N

Jonathan Holman 2. 3
President of The Holman Group, Inc.

T Member of the Stock Option Committee
2 Member of the Audit Committee
3 Member of the Compensation Committee

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Joe Peterson, MD
President and Chief Executive Officer

Ron Rudolph
Executive Vice President, Finance
Chief Financial Officer

Mike Tatum
Senior Vice President, Lab Support

Michael Jones
Senior Vice President, Healthcare Business Development

Kerry Rafferty
Senior Vice President, Solutions Group

Form 10-K

Additional copies of our Annual Report on Form 10K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2003
are available without charge upon written request to:

On Assignment, Inc.

Investor Relations Department
26651 West Agoura Road
Calabasas, California 1302

A copy of our Form 10-K is also contained in the pocket of the
back cover of this annual report.
CoMMON STOCK

On Assignment, Inc., common stock is traded on the

Nasdaqg Stock Market under the symbol ASGN.

Following are high and low sales prices for On Assignment, Inc.
common stock by quarter, as reported by Nasdag:

Price Range of Common Stock

High
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2002
First Quarter $25.26
Second Quarter $23.96
Third Quarter $1787

Fourth Quarter $9.58
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2001

First Quarter $29.69
Second Quarter $23.20
Third Quarter $20.07
Fourth Quarter $24.00

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, CA

LEGAaL COUNSEL

Hogan and Hartson, LLP

Washington, DC

TRANSFER AGENT

U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation
Glendale, CA

L
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Low

$1775
$16.05
$6.81
$5.77

$18.38
$16.30
$13.45
$15.66




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURI-
TIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002

(1  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number §-20540

ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 95-4023433
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

" 26651 West Agoura Read
Calabasas, California 91302
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (818) 878-7900

Securities registered pursuant te Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of each exchange
Title of each class on which registered

None None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock, $0.01 par value
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements of the past 90 days. Yes No (O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 4035 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part IIT of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicated by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act
Rule 12b-2) Yes No (O

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant computed by reference to the
price at which the common equity was last sold as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed
second quarter was approximately $475,943,983.

As of March 19, 2003, the registrant had outstanding 25,501,145 shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s proxy statement, to be filed within 120 days of the close of the registrant’s fiscal year,
are incorporated by reference into Part 111 of this report on Form 10-K.
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SPECIAL NOTE ON FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, including the information it incorporates by reference, contains forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We intend our forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe
harbor provisions for forward-looking statements in these sections. All statements regarding our
expected financial position and operating results, our business strategy, our financing plans, economic
trends relating to our industry and similar matters are forward-looking statements. These statements
can sometimes be identified by our use of forward-looking words such as “may,” “will,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “expect” or “intend.” We cannot promise you that our expectations in such forward-looking
statements will turn out to be correct. Our actual results could be materially different from our
expectations because of various factors, including those discussed under “Business—Risk Factors” in
this report.




Item 1. Business

Overview and History

On Assignment, Inc. is a leading provider of skilled temporary professionals to clients in the
science and healthcare industries. We provide clients in these markets with short-term or long-term
assignments of temporary professionals and temporary to permanent placement of these professionals.
Our business consists of two operating segments: Healthcare Staffing and Lab Support.

The Healthcare Staffing segment includes our Nurse Travel, Allied Travel, Healthcare Financial
Staffing, Clinical Lab Staff and Diagnostic Imaging Staff divisions. Healthcare Staffing segment
revenues represented approximately 55 percent of our total revenues for 2002, up from 28 percent in
2001, principally due to our acquisition of Health Personnel Options Corporation (HPQO) in April 2002.
Through this acquisition, we were able to enter the growing travel nurse business and supplement our
locally-based allied temporary professionals with temporary travel professionals. We are now able to
offer our healthcare clients and potential clients, temporary professionals from more than ten
healthcare and medical financial occupations. These temporary staffing specialties include nurses,
specialty nurses, surgical technicians, imaging technicians, x-ray technicians, cytotechnologists,
phlebotomists, coding, billing, claims processing and collections staff.

In the science industry, our Lab Support segment provides locally-based temporary and permanent
placement of scientists and other professionals to industrial laboratories in the biotechnology,
pharmaceutical, food and beverage, chemical and environmental industries in the U.S. as well as the
U.K., The Netherlands and Belgium.

We were incorporated on December 30, 1985 and commenced operation of our first temporary
staffing division, Lab Support. Utilizing our experience and unique approach in servicing our clients
and temporary professionals, we expanded our operations into other industries requiring specialty
staffing. In 1994, through our acquisition of 1% Choice Personnel, Inc. and Sklar Resource Group, Inc.,
we established our Healthcare Financial Staffing division. Originally named Finance Support, this
division changed its name in 1997 along with a shift in its business development focus to medical billing
and collections for hospitals, HMO’s and physician groups. In 1996, through our acquisition of
EnviroStaff, we began providing temporary professionals to the environmental services industry.
LabStaffers, Inc. was acquired in 1998 to enhance our domestic Lab Support business. In 1999, we
expanded our Lab Support operations into Europe. Also in 1999, we formed our Clinical Lab Staff
division and in 2001, we formed our Diagnostic Imaging Staff division. Both of these divisions provide
scientific and medical professionals to hospitals, physicians’ offices, clinics, reference laboratories and
HMOQO’s. In 2002, through our acquisition of HPC, we established our Nurse Travel and Allied Travel
divisions. Our Nurse Travel division provides registered nurses to hospitals for assignments typically of
four to eight weeks. Our Allied Travel division provides radiation technologists, laboratory technicians
and respiratory therapists to hospitals for contract periods of thirteen weeks or more.

Business Segments

Our service divisions are grouped under two operating segments: Healthcare Staffing and Lab
Support.

The Healthcare Staffing segment includes, the domestic operations of the following divisions:
Healthcare Financial Staffing, Clinical Lab Staff, Diagnostic Imaging Staff, Nurse Travel and Allied
Travel.

The Lab Support segment includes the domestic operations of Lab Support as well as the
international operations of Lab Support comprised of Assignment Ready Inc., a corporation in Canada,




Lab Support (UK) Limited, a UK corporation, On Assignment Lab Support B.V,, a corporation in The
Netherlands, On Assignment Lab Support N.V,, a Belgium corporation, and Lab Support Ireland
Limited, a corporation in Ireland.

Financial information regarding our operating segments and our domestic and international
revenues are included under “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data” in Part II, Item 8 of this
annual report.

Organization

Our principal executive and field support offices are located at 26651 West Agoura Road,
Calabasas, California 91302, and our telephone number is (818) 878-7900. Field support offices for our
Nurse Travel and Allied Travel divisions are located at 8150 Corporate Park Drive, Suite 300,
Cincinnati, Ohio 45242, and the telephone number is (513) 936-3468. We have approximately 110
branches in 31 states and 3 foreign countries.

On Assignment’s Approach

Our strategy is to serve the needs of our targeted industries by effectively matching client staffing
needs with qualified temporary healthcare and scientific professionals. In contrast to the mass market
approach generally used for temporary office/clerical and light industrial personnel, we believe effective
assignments of temporary healthcare and scientific professionals require the people involved in making
assignments to have significant knowledge of the client’s industry and the ability to assess the specific
needs of the client as well as the temporary healthcare and science professionals’ qualifications. As a
result, we have developed a tailored approach to the assignment-making process that we refer to as the
Staffing Consultant System (formerly called the Account Manager System). Unlike traditional
approaches, the Staffing Consultant System is based on the use of experienced professionals called
Staffing Consultants to manage all aspects of the assignment-making process. Staffing Consultants meet
with clients’ managers to understand client needs, formulate position descriptions and assess workplace
environments. Staffing consultants also meet with temporary professional candidates to assess their
qualifications and interests. With this information, Staffing Consultants can make quality assignments of
temporary professionals to clients, typically within 24 to 48 hours of client requests.

The use of experienced professionals to manage individually all aspects of the assignment-making
process was modified for both the Lab Support and Healthcare Staffing segments at the end of the
second quarter of 2002. The modification of the Staffing Consultant System permits specialization by
Staffing Consuiltants between selling and business development, on the one hand, and recruiting and
assignment-making, on the other. Staffing Consultants are able to specialize in one of these areas based
on their interests and skills. A further modification was effected on behalf of the Healthcare Staffing
segment during the fourth quarter of 2002. The objective of this change was to improve the efficiency
of our selling and business development processes. This was done by consolidating the selling of all
healthcare temporary professional specialties, both local and travel staffing, while retaining
specialization in the fulfillment process. The selling of all Healthcare Staffing segment specialties is now
performed through over fifty branch offices. Fulfillment functions for local healthcare staffing are also
carried out through these branches, while the recruitment and assignment of nurses and other allied
healthcare professionals placed on travel assignments remains a centralized operation at our location in
Cincinnati, Ohio.

Our corporate office performs many functions that allow Staffing Consultants to focus more
effectively on the assignment of temporary professionals. These functions include recruiting for Staffing
Consultants and support staff, ongoing training and coaching, appointment making, business
development and administrative support. The corporate office also selects, opens and maintains branch
offices. Temporary professionals assigned to clients are employees of On Assignment, although clients



provide on-the-job supervisors for temporary professionals. Therefore, clients control and direct the
work of temporary professionals and approve hours worked, while we are responsible for many of the

activities typically handled by the client’s personnel department.

Branch Office Network

At December 31, 2002, we had approximately 60 Lab Support segment branch offices and 50
Healthcare Staffing segment branch offices. Of this approximate total of 110 branch offices, 60 branch
offices utilized shared office space among divisions. Through this network of branch offices, we serve
the following markets:

Domestic:

Alexandria, VA
Ann Arbor, M1
Atlanta, GA
Baltimore, MD
Boston, MA
Buffalo, NY
Charlotte, NC
Cheshire, CT
Chicago, IL
Cincinnati, OH
Cleveland, OH
Columbus, OH
Costa Mesa, CA

Foreign:

Antwerp, Belgium
Birmingham, UK

Clients

Dallas, TX
Dayton, OH
Denver, CO

Des Moines, IA
Detroit, MI
Escondido, CA
Ft. Lauderdale, FL
Ft. Worth, TX
Grand Rapids, MI
Greensboro, NC
Harrisburg, PA
Houston, TX
Indianapolis, IN

Cambridge, UK
Eindhoven,
The Netherlands

Jacksonville, FL
Kansas City, MO
Las Vegas, NV
Los Angeles, CA
Louisville, KY
Madison, WI
Memphis, TN
Miami, FL
Milwaukee, WI
Minneapolis, MN
New Orleans, LA
Qakland, CA
Oklahoma City, OK

Glasgow, Scotland
Leeds, UK

Pasadena, CA
Philadelphia, PA
Phoenix, AZ
Piscataway, NJ
Pittsburgh, PA
Pleasanton, CA
Portland, OR
Princeton, NJ
Raleigh-Durham, NC
Richmond, VA
Riverside, CA

San Bernardino, CA
Sacramento, CA

London, UK
Manchester, UK

Salt Lake City, UT
San Antonio, TX
San Diego, CA
San Francisco, CA
San Jose, CA
Savannah, GA
Seattle, WA

St. Louis, MO
Tampa, FL

Tulsa, OK
Washington, DC
White Plains, NY
Worcester, MA

Oxford, UK
Rotterdam,

The Netherlands
Utrecht,

The Netherlands

The Healthcare Staffing segment’s clients primarily include hospitals, central billing offices,
physicians’ groups, HMO’s, clinics, reference labs and university research and student health centers.
The Lab Support segment’s clients primarily include biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage,
chemical and environmental companies. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we provided
temporary professionals to approximately 5,900 clients. Contracts for our Lab Support segment typically
have a term of three to six months. Contracts for our Healthcare Staffing segment typically have a term
of four to eight weeks, and contracts for our Allied Travel division typically have a term of thirteen
weeks or more. All temporary assignments, regardless of their planned length, may be terminated

without prior notice by the client or the temporary professional.

The Temporary Professional

The skill and experience levels of the Healthcare Staffing segment’s temporary professionals
include nurses, specialty nurses, surgical technicians, imaging technicians, x-ray technicians, medical
technicians, cytotechnologists, phlebotomists, coding, billing, claims processing and collections staff.
These temporary professionals typically have two or more years of experience.




The skill and experience levels of the Lab Support segment’s temporary professionals range from
scientists, with bachelor’s and/or master’s degrees and considerable experience, to technicians with
limited chemistry or biology background and lab experience.

Hourly wage rates are established according to local market conditions. We pay the related costs of
employment including social security taxes, federal and state unemployment taxes, workers’
compensation insurance and other similar costs. After minimum service periods and hours worked, we
also provide paid holidays, allow participation in our 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan and Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, create eligibility for an annual bonus, and facilitate access to and supplement the
cost of health insurance for our temporary professionals. In order to help ensure that we are able to
attract and retain qualified temporary professionals, particularly in the healthcare industry, we plan to
offer temporary professionals benefits, rewards and opportunities that are linked to concentration of
work, quality of work and loyalty. For travel assignments, we pay for all travel-related costs including
airfare, car rentals, and housing or provide per diem allowances.

Growth Strategy

We intend to continue to grow our operations domestically and internationally in the healthcare,
laboratory and scientific, and clinical laboratory fields that we currently serve primarily through internal
organic growth. In particular, our strategy is to focus on expanding our service offerings targeted to
clients needing nurse and allied temporary professionals and increasing the productivity of our existing
branch network. In addition, we review acquisition opportunities, particularly in the healthcare industry,
that may enable us to leverage our current infrastructure and capabilities as well as to possibly enhance
the skill and experience levels of the temporary professionals we offer to our clients. Our acquisitions
of 1st Choice Personnel, Inc. and Sklar Resource Group, Inc. in 1994, EnviroStaff, Inc. in 1996,
LabStaffers, Inc. in 1998, and HPO in 2002 were consistent with this strategy. We periodically engage
in discussions with other possible acquisition candidates.

Competition

The temporary staffing industry is highly competitive and fragmented, with low barriers to entry.
We believe Lab Support is one of the few nationwide temporary staffing providers that specialize
exclusively in scientific laboratory personnel. Although other nationwide temporary staffing companies
compete with us with respect to scientific, clinical laboratory and medical technologist and medical
billing and collection personnel, many of these companies focus on office/clerical and light and heavy
industrial personnel, which account for a significant portion of the overall temporary personnel services
market. These companies include Manpower, Inc., Kelly Services, Inc., and Adecco International. In
the Nurse Travel and Allied Travel businesses, our competitors include AMN Healthcare Services, Inc.,
Medical Staffing Network Holding, Inc., RehabCare Group Inc., and Cross Country, Inc. Several of
these competitors are larger and have substantially greater financial and marketing resources than we
do.

We also compete with temporary staffing companies on a regional and local basis. Frequently, the
strongest competition in a particular market is a local company with established relationships. We also
compete with our clients that directly advertise or seek referrals of qualified candidates on their own
behalf.

The principal competitive factors in attracting qualified candidates for temporary employment are
salaries and benefits, availability and variety of assignments, quality and duration of assignments and
responsiveness to requests for placement and other needs of temporary professionals. We believe that
many people seeking temporary employment through us are also pursuing employment through other
means, including other temporary staffing companies. Therefore, the speed at which we place
prospective temporary professionals and the availability of appropriate assignments are important




factors in our ability to complete assignments of qualified candidates. In addition to having high quality
temporary professionals to assign in a timely manner, the principal competitive factors in obtaining and
retaining clients in the temporary staffing industry are correctly understanding the clients’ specific job
requirements, the appropriateness of the temporary professional assigned to the client, the price of
services and the monitoring of client satisfaction. Although we believe we compete favorably with
respect to these factors, we expect competition to continue to increase.

Employees

At December 31, 2002, we employed approximately 450 full-time employees, including Staffing
Consultants and corporate office employees. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we employed
approximately 16,000 temporary professionals. None of our employees, including our temporary
professionals, are represented by a labor union or are parties to a collective bargaining agreement. We
believe our employee relations are good.

Regulation

Our operations are subject to applicable state and local regulations, both domestically and
internationally, governing the provision of temporary staffing that require temporary staffing companies
to be licensed or separately registered. To date, we have not experienced any material difficulties in
complying with such regulations. State mandated workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance
premiums, which we pay for our temporary professionals and regular employees, have a direct effect on
our cost of services and thereby, profitability of our business.

Proprietary Rights

We have registered our On Assignmeni®, Lab Support®, Healthcare Financial Staffing®, Clinical
Lab Staff®, Lab Support Science Professionals On Assignment®, Clinical Lab Staff Clinical Lab
Professionals On Assignment®, Assignment Ready®, EnviroStaff®, On Assignment Employer of
Knowledge Workers®, and The Quality Assignment® service marks with the United States Patent and
Trademark Office. We have pending applications for Perx™ and Healthcare Staffing™ service marks
and a Lab Support™ design mark. We have also registered the Lab Support service mark in Canada
and the UK, have obtained the right to use the Lab Support service mark in The Netherlands and have
applied for the use of the Lab Support service mark in Belgium. We have also obtained European
Community registration for our “On Assignment Employer of Knowledge Workers” logo and for “On
Assignment Lab Support Science Professicnals On Assignment” logo. We have rights in other
trademarks used in connection with our business and have other applications pending for the
international use of our service marks.

Avazilable Information and Access to Reports

We electronically file our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). You may read and copy any of our reports that are filed with the SEC in the
following manner:

e At the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street NW, Washington, DC 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
(800) SEC-0330;

° At the SEC’s website, http://www.sec.gov;
° At our website, http://www.onassignment.com; and
e By contacting our Investors Relations Department at (818) 878-7900.

Our reports are available through any of the foregoing means as soon as practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.




Risk Factors

Our business is subject to a number of risks, including the following:

Our results of operations may vary from quarter to quarter as a result of a number of factors, which may
make it difficult to evaluate our business and could cause instability in the trading price of our common
stock.

We anticipate that our future operating results may vary on a quarterly basis, as a result of a
number of factors, many of which are outside of our control. Factors that may cause our quarterly
results to fluctuate include: :

> the level of demand for our temporary staffing services and the efficiency with which we source
and assign our temporary professionals and support our sales personnel and Staffing Consultants
in the execution of their duties;

° costs of attracting, retaining and training sales personnel and Staffing Consultants and skilled
temporary professionals;

o changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors; and
° our ability to control costs and manage our accounts receivable balances.

In addition, most temporary staffing companies typically experience seasonal declines in demand
during and after the year-end holiday season and to a lesser degree during June, July and August.
Historically, we have experienced variability in the duration and depth of these seasonal declines, which
in turn have materially affected our quarterly results of operation and made period-to-period
comparisons of our financial and operating performance difficuit.

As a result of these and other factors, including the risks described in this report, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to achieve our past rate of revenue growth or maintain profitability on a
quarterly or annual basis. If our operating results are below the expectations of public market analysts
or investors in a given quarter, the trading price of our common stock could decline.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified temporary professionals for our Lab Support and Healthcare
Staffing segments, our business could be negatively impacted.

Our business is substantially dependent upon our ability to attract and retain healthcare and lab
support temporary professionals who possess the skills, experience and, as required, licenses to meet
the specified requirements of our clients. We compete for such temporary professionals with other
temporary staffing companies and with our clients and potential clients. Currently, there is a shortage
of qualified nurses in most areas of the United States. Competition for nursing personnel is increasing
and salaries and benefits have risen. Further, there can be no assurance that qualified laboratory and
scientific, clinical laboratory and medical technologist, allied healthcare and medical billing and
collections personnel will be available to us in adequate numbers to staff our operating segments.
Moreover, our temporary professionals are often hired to become regular employees of our clients.
Attracting and retaining temporary professionals depends on several factors, including our ability to
provide temporary professionals with attractive assignments and competitive benefits and wages. The
cost of attracting and retaining temporary professionals may be higher than we anticipate and, as a
result, if we are unable to pass these costs on to our clients, our profitability could decline. If we are
unable to attract and retain a sufficient number of temporary professionals to meet client demand, we
may be required to forgo staffing and revenue opportunities which may hurt the growth of our
business.




Execution of our business strategy and growth of our business are substantially dependent upon our ability to
attract, develop and retain qualified and skilled sales personnel and Staffing Consultants.

Execution of our business strategy and continued growth of our business are substantially

dependent upon our ability to attract, develop and retain qualified and skilled sales personnel and
Staffing Consultants. Staffing Consultants and sales personnel also engage in selling and business
development for our services. The available pool of qualified sales personnel and Staffing Consultant
candidates is limited. We commit substantial resources to the recruitment, training, development and
operational support of our sales personnel and Staffing Consultants. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to recruit, develop and retain qualified sales personnel and Staffing Consultants in
sufficient numbers or that our sales personnel and Staffing Consultants will achieve productivity levels
sufficient to enable growth of our business. Failure to attract and retain productive sales personnel and
Staffing Consultants could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Difficulties integrating acquisitions, including our recent HPO acquisition, info our operations could result in
increased costs or exposure to unforeseen liabifities.

We acquired Health Personnel Options Corporation (HPO) in the second quarter of 2002. We
have also acquired four other businesses since 1994, including 1st Choice Personnel, Inc. and Sklar
Resource Group, Inc. in 1994, EnviroStaff, Inc. in 1996 and LabStaffers, Inc. in 1998. We review
acquisition opportunities, particularly in the healthcare industry, that complement or enhance our
existing business. We also evaluate opportunities to acquire businesses that increase staffing offerings
and geographic reach. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, including:

 potential loss of key employees or clients of acquired companies;
o difficulties integrating acquired personnel and distinct cultures;

e difficulties integrating acquired companies into operating, financial planning and financial
reporting systems;

¢ diversion of management attention from existing operations; and
s assumption of liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies.

Acquisitions of other businesses may also involve significant expenditures, the incurrence of debt
and integration expenses that could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
Any acquisition may ultimately have a negative impact on our business and financial condition.

The temporary staffing industry is highly competitive and the success and future growth of our business
depend upon our ability to remain competitive in obtaining and retaining temporary staffing clients.

The temporary staffing industry is highly competitive and fragmented, with limited barriers to
entry. We compete in national, regional and local markets with full-service agencies and in regional and
local markets with specialized temporary staffing agencies. Some of our competitors in the Nurse Travel
and Allied Travel businesses include AMN Healthcare Services, Inc., Cross Country, Inc., Medical
Staffing Network Holdings, Inc. and RehabCare Group Inc. Some of our competitors in the Lab
Support and Local Healthcare Staffing businesses include Kelly Services, Inc., Manpower, Inc. and
Adecco International. Several of these companies have significantly greater marketing and financial
resources than we do. Our ability to attract and retain clients is based on the value of the service we
deliver, which in turns depends principally on the speed with which we fill assignments and the
appropriateness of the match based on clients’ requirements and the skills and experience of our
temporary employees. Our ability to attract skilled, experienced temporary professionals is based on our
ability to pay competitive wages, to provide competitive benefits, to provide multiple, continuous
assignments and thereby increase the retention rate of these employees. To the extent that competitors
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seek to gain or retain market share by reducing prices or increasing marketing expenditures, we could
lose revenues and our margins could decline, which could seriously harm our operating results and
cause the trading price of our stock to decline. As we expand into new geographic markets, our success
will depend in part on our ability to gain market share from competitors. We expect competition for
clients to increase in the future, and the success and growth of our business depend on our ability to
remain competitive.

Because our temporary staffing agreements may be terminated by clients and temporary professionals at will,
the termination of a significant number of such agreements would adversely affect our revenues and results of
operations.

Our arrangements with clients and temporary professionals are terminable at will, without advance
notice, regardless of the length of the agreed-upon term. There can be no assurance that existing
clients will continue to use our services at historical levels, if at all. If clients terminate a significant
number of our staffing agreements, and we are unable to generate new temporary staffing orders to
replace lost revenues, our revenues and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We are subject to business risks associated with international operations, which could make our international
operations significantly more costly.

In the first quarter of 1999, we expanded our operations to the United Kingdom and during 2000,
we expanded into The Netherlands and Belgium. We have limited experience in marketing, selling and,
particularly, supporting our services outside of North America.

Operations in certain of our markets are subject to risks inherent in international business
activities, including:

¢ fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

» complicated work permit requirements;

* varying economic and political conditions;

e seasonal reductions in business activity during the summer months in Europe;
* overlapping or differing tax structures;

¢ difficulties collecting accounts receivable; and

» regulations concerning pay rates, benefits, vacation, union membership, redundancy payments
and the termination of employment.

Our inability to effectively manage our international operations could result in increased costs and
adversely affect our results of operations.

Improper activities of our temporary professionals could result in damage to our business reputation,
discontinuation of our client relationships and exposure to liability.

We may be subject to possible claims by our clients related to errors and omissions, misuse of
proprietary information, discrimination and harassment, theft and other criminal activity, malpractice,
and other claims stemming from the improper activities or alleged activities of our temporary
professionals. There can be no assurance that our current liability insurance coverage will be adequate
or will continue to be available in sufficient amounts to cover damages or other costs associated with
such claims. Claims raised by clients stemming from the improper actions of our temporary
professionals, even if without merit, could cause us to incur significant expense associated with the costs
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or damages related to such claims. Further, such claims by clients could damage our business
reputation and result in the discontinuation of client relationships.

Claims against us by our temporary professionals for damages resulting from the negiigence or mistreatment
by our clients couid result in significant costs and adversely affect our recruitment and retention efforts.

We may be subject to possible claims by our temporary professionals alleging discrimination, sexual
harassment, negligence and other similar activities by our clients. There can be no assurance that our
current liability insurance coverage will be adequate or will continue to be available in sufficient
amounts to cover damages or other costs associated with such claims. Claims raised by our temporary
professionals, even if without merit, could cause us to incur significant expense associated with the costs
or damages related to such claims. Further, any associated negative publicity could adversely affect our
ability to attract and retain qualified temporary professionals in the future.

We have a substantial amount of goodwill on our balance sheet at December 31, 2002. If we are required to
write down goodwill, the related charge could materiaily reduce reported net income or result in a net loss for
the period in which the write down occurs.

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $123.8 million of unamortized goodwill on our
balance sheet, which primarily represents the excess of the total purchase price of our acquisition of
HPO in April 2002 over the fair value of the net assets acquired. At December 31, 2002, goodwill
represented 57 percent of our total assets.

We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” as of January 1, 2002. FAS No. 142 requires that we review and test goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment rather than amortize them. Based on our estimates, we
have concluded there is no impairment of our goodwill or other intangible assets at December 31,
2002. However, if the estimates we used to determine the carrying value of our businesses are not
correct or if the trading price of our common stock does not improve, we could be required to record
impairment charges related to goodwill and other intangible assets, which could adversely affect our
profitability for the period in which the write down occurs. For example, during the first quarter of
2003, we experienced a significant decline in our market capitalization. During the first half of 2003, if
our market capitalization does not recover to the levels of December 2002 (approximately
$226.0 million), we may need to perform another impairment analysis. This analysis could potentially
result in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of up to approximately $123.8 million, which is the
entire goodwill balance at December 31, 2002, depending on the estimated value of the businesses to
which the goodwill relates and the value of the other assets and liabilities attributed to those
businesses. Although an impairment charge to earnings will not affect our cash flow, it has the effect of
decreasing our earnings or increasing our losses. If we are required to take a substantial impairment
charge to earnings, our earnings per share would be negatively impacted.

If we are subject to material uninsured liabilities under our partielly self-insured workers’ compensation
program, our financial resulls could be adversely affected.

We maintain a partially self-insured workers’ compensation program. In connection with this
program, we pay a base premium plus actual losses incurred up to certain levels. We are insured for
losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. There can be no assurance that
our loss reserves and insurance coverage will be adequate in amount to cover all workers’
compensation claims. If we become subject to substantial uninsured workers compensation liabilities,
our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.
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Our business is dependent upon the proper functioning of our information systems.

In 2002, we began the implementation of PeopleSoft, an enterprise wide information system. The
operation of our business is dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems. Critical
information systems used in daily operations identify and match staffing resources and client
assignments, regulatory credentialing, scheduling and also perform billing and accounts receivable
functions. Our information systems are vulnerable to fire, storm, flood, power loss, telecommunications
failures, physical or software break-ins and similar events. If our information systems fail or are
otherwise unavailable, these functions would have to be accomplished manually, which could impact
our ability to identify business opportunities quickly to pay our staff in a timely fashion and to bill for
services efficiently.

Demand for our services is significantly impacted by changes in the general level of economic activity and
continued periods of reduced economic activity could negatively impact our business and results of operations.

Demand for the temporary staffing services that we provide is significantly impacted by changes in
the general level of economic activity. As economic activity slows, many clients or potential clients for
our services reduce their usage of and reliance upon temporary professionals before laying off their
regular, full-time employees. During periods of reduced economic activity, we may also be subject to
increased competition for market share and pricing pressure. As a result, continued periods of reduced
economic activity could have a material adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

We do not have long-term or exclusive agreements with our temporary staffing clients and growth of our
business depends upon our ability to continually secure and fill new orders.

We do not have long-term agreements or exclusive guaranteed order contracts with our temporary
staffing clients. Contracts for our Lab Support segment typically have a term of three to six months.
Contracts for our Healthcare Staffing segment typically have a term of four to eight weeks, and
contracts for our Allied Travel division typically have a term of thirteen weeks or more. The success of
our business depends upon our ability to continually secure new orders from clients and to fill those
orders with our temporary professionals. Our agreements do not provide for exclusive use of our
services, and clients are free to place orders with our competitors. As a result, it is imperative to our
business that we maintain positive relationships with our clients. If we fail to maintain positive
relationships with these clients, we may be unable to generate new temporary staffing orders, and the
growth of our business could be adversely affected.

Fluctuation in patient occcupancy rates at client facilities could adversely affect demand for services of our
Healthcare Staffing seginent and our results of operations.

Client demand for our temporary Healthcare Staffing segment services is significantly impacted by
changes in patient occupancy rates at our hospital and healthcare clients’ facilities. Increases in
occupancy often result in increased client need for temporary professionals before full-time employees
can be hired. During periods of decreased occupancy, however, hospitals and other healthcare facilities
typically reduce their use of temporary professionals before laying off their regular, full-time employees.
During periods of decreased occupancy, we may experience increased competition to service clients,
including pricing pressure. Occupancy at certain healthcare clients’ facilities also fluctuates due to the
seasonality of some elective procedures. Periods of decreased occupancy at client healthcare facilities
could materially adversely affect our results of operations.
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The loss of key members of our senior management team could adversely affect the execution of our business
strategy and our financial results.

We believe that the successful execution of our business strategy and our ability to build upon the
significant infrastructure investments and restructuring we have undertaken in the past year depends on
the continued employment of key members of our senior management team. If any members of our
senior management team become unable or unwilling to continue in their present positions, our
financial results and the growth of our business could be materially adversely affected.

Future changes in reimbursement trends could hamper our Healthcare Staffing segment clients’ ability to pay
us.

Many of our Healthcare Staffing segment clients are reimbursed under the federal Medicare
program and state Medicaid programs for the services they provide. In recent years, federal and state
governments have made significant changes in these programs that have reduced reimbursement rates.
In addition, insurance companies and managed care organizations seck to control costs by requiring
that healthcare providers, such as hospitals, discount their services in exchange for exclusive or
preferred participation in their benefit plans. Future federal and state legislation or evolving
commercial reimbursement trends may further reduce, or change conditions for, our clients’
reimbursement. Limitations on reimbursement could reduce our clients’ cash flows, hampering their
ability to pay us.

If our insurance costs increase significantly, these incremental costs could negatively affect our financial
results.

The costs related to obtaining and maintaining workers’ compensation insurance, professional and
general liability insurance and health insurance for our temporary professionals have been increasing. If
the cost of carrying this insurance continues to increase significantly, we will recognize an associated
increase in costs, which may negatively affect our margins. This could have an adverse impact on our
financial condition and the price of our common stock.

Healthcare reform could negatively impact our business opportunities, revenues and margins.

The U.S. government has undertaken efforts to control increasing healthcare costs through
legislation, regulation and voluntary agreements with medical care providers and drug companies. In
the recent past, the U.S. Congress has considered several comprehensive healthcare reform proposals.
The proposals were generally intended to expand healthcare coverage for the uninsured and reduce the
growth of total healthcare expenditures. While the U.S. Congress did not adopt any comprehensive
reform proposals, members of Congress may raise similar proposals in the future. If any of these
proposals are approved, hospitals and other healthcare facilities may react by spending less on
healthcare staffing, including nurses. If this were to occur, we would have fewer business opportunities,
which could seriously harm our business.

State governments have also attempted to control increasing healthcare costs. For example, the
state of Massachusetts has recently implemented a regulation that limits the hourly rate payable to
temporary nursing agencies for registered nurses, licensed practical nurses and certified nurses’ aides.
The state of Minnesota has also implemented a statute that limits the amount that nursing agencies
may charge nursing homes. Cther states have also proposed legislation that would limit the amounts
that temporary staffing companies may charge. Any such current or proposed laws could seriously harm
our business, revenues and margins.
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Furthermore, third party payors, such as health maintenance organizations, increasingly challenge
the prices charged for medical care. Failure by hospitals and other healthcare facilities to obtain full
reimbursement from those third party payors could reduce the demand or the price paid for our
staffing services.

We operate in a regulated industry and changes in regulations or violations of regulations may result in
increased costs or sanctions that could reduce our revenues and profitability.

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive and complex federal and state laws and regulations
related to professional licensure, conduct of operations, payment for services and payment for referrals.
If we fail to comply with the laws and regulations that are directly applicable to our business, we could
suffer civil and/or criminal penalties or be subject to injunctions or cease and desist orders.

The extensive and complex laws that apply to our hospital and healthcare facility clients, including
laws related to Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare programs, could indirectly
affect the demand or the prices paid for our services. For example, our hospital and healthcare facility
clients could suffer civil and/or criminal penalties and/or be excluded from participating in Medicare,
Medicaid and other healthcare programs if they fail to comply with the laws and regulations applicable
to their businesses. In addition, our hospital and healthcare facility clients could receive reduced
reimbursements, or be excluded from coverage, because of a change in the rates or conditions set by
federal or state governments. In turn, violations of or changes to these laws and regulations that
adversely affect our hospital and healthcare facility clients could also adversely affect the prices that
these clients are willing or able to pay for our services.

The trading price of our common stock has experienced significant fluctuations, which could make it difficult
Jor us to access the public markets for financing or use our common stock as consideration in a strategic
transaction.

The trading price of our common stock has experienced significant fluctuations, from a high sales
price of $25.26 in 2002 to a low sales price of $5.77 in 2002. The closing price of our common stock on
the Nasdaq National Market was $4.07 at March 17, 2003. Our common stock may continue to
fluctuate widely as a result of a large number of factors, many of which are beyond our control,
including:

e period to period fluctuations in our financial results;

» failure to meet previously announced guidance or analysts’ expectations of our quarterly results;
and

e general economic and other external factors.

The stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected the
market prices of many companies involved in the temporary staffing industry. As a result of these
fluctuations, we may encounter difficulty should we determine to access the public markets for
financing or use our common stock as consideration in a strategic transaction.
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Provisions in our corporate documents and Delaware law may delay or prevent a change in conirol of On
Assignment that stockholders consider favorable.

Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws contain provisions that may discourage, delay or
prevent a merger or acquisition involving us that our stockholders may consider favorable. For example,
our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions requiring a 66 percent stockholder vote
or two-thirds vote of continuing Directors to effect certain amendments to such documents. Our
certificate of incorporation also authorizes our Board of Directors to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of
“blank check” preferred stock. Without stockholder approval, the Board of Directors has the authority
to attach special rights, including voting and dividend rights, to this preferred stock. With these rights,
preferred stockholders could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us. Delaware law may
also discourage, delay or prevent someone from acquiring or merging with us.

Item 2. Properties

We have leased approximately 30,500 square feet of office space through March 2011 for our field
support and corporate headquarters in Calabasas, California and 27,500 square feet of office space
through March 2006 for our field support offices in Cincinnati, Ohio. In addition, we lease office space
in approximately 110 branch office locations in the United States, United Kingdom, The Netherlands
and Belgium. A branch office typically occupies space ranging from approximately 1,500 to 2,500 square
feet with lease terms that typically range from six months to five years.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in litigation and proceedings arising out of the ordinary course
of our business. As of the date of this report, there are no pending material legal proceedings to which
we are a party or to which our property is subject.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of On Assignment are as follows:

Name Age Position

Joseph Peterson, M.D. ........... 42  Chief Executive Officer and President -

Ronald W. Rudolph ............. 59  Executive Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Michael T. Jones. .. ............. 55  Chief Operating Officer of Healthcare
Staffing

Kerry Rafferty . ................ 36 Senior Vice President, Solutions
Group

Michael A. Tatum ... ............ 44  Senior Vice President, Lab Support
Division

Joseph Peterson, M.E. joined On Assignment in July 2001 and has served as Chief Executive
Officer and President since September 2001. Dr. Peterson also serves as a Director on our Board of
Directors and as a Director of Global Health Council, the world’s largest membership alliance
dedicated to improving health worldwide. From April 2000 through May 2001, Dr. Peterson founded
and was Chief Executive Officer of Advocates on Call, formally, Neoplan, Inc., which offered
subscription-based services related to the healthcare industry. Dr. Peterson co-founded and from
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January 1994 through March 2000 was Chief Executive Officer of MAXWorldwide, LLC, a company
that provided customer care services to Fortune 500 clients. Dr. Peterson co-founded and from January
1992 through March 1996, was Chief Executive Officer of MAXCanada, a Canadian company that
provided customer care services to major Canadian financial institutions. From 1988 through 1991,

Dr. Peterson served as Medical Director and ultimately Chief Operating Officer of World Access, Inc,,
a subsidiary of Blue Cross & Blue Shield of the National Capital Area. Dr. Peterson is a Board-
certified emergency physician and practiced his specialty for ten years in the Emergency Department of
the George Washington University Hospital, in Washington, D.C., where he was an Associate Professor
of Emergency Medicine and a Fellow of the American Board of Emergency Medicine.

Ronald W. Rudolph has served as Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
since March 2000. From January 1999 through March 2000, Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice
President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer. From October 1996 through December 1998,

Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice President, Finance and Operations Support, and Chief Financial
Officer. From January 1996 through October 1996, Mr. Rudolph served as Senior Vice President,
Finance and Administration, and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Rudolph joined On Assignment in
April 1995, as Vice President, Finance and Administration, and Chief Financial Officer. From

April 1987 to September 1994, Mr. Rudolph was Vice President, Finance and Administration, and
Chief Financial Officer of Retix, a manufacturer of enterprise networking devices, and from June 1993
to September 1994, Mr. Rudolph was a director of Retix. Mr. Rudolph holds an MBA from the
University of Chicago, a Bachelor of Industrial Engineering from The Ohio State University and is a
Certified Public Accountant.

Michael Jones has served as Chief Operating Officer of the Healthcare Staffing division since
October 1, 2002, with responsibility for local healthcare staffing through our branch network as well as
our Nurse and Allied Travel divisions. From April 26, 2002 through September 30, 2002, Mr. Jones was
Chief Operating Officer of the then newly acquired HPO nurse and allied travel business. Mr. Jones
joined On Assignment in February 2002 as Senior Vice President, International Operations with
responsibility for the European operations of the Lab Support division. From October 2000 to
December 2001, Mr. Jones was Chief Executive Officer of Quest Holdings, a tour operating business.
From January 1998 to October 2002, Mr. Jones was Chief Operating Officer of Abercrombie and Kent,
a luxury tour operator, in charge of their European business. He also served as Chief Operating Officer
of Brymon Airways, an air regional carrier operating in Europe, and prior to that he held senior
positions with British Airways in the USA, Portugal, The Middle East, Australia, the UK, Africa, Asia
and Canada.

Kerry Rafferty has served as Senior Vice President of our Solutions Group since July 2002 with
responsibility for training, marketing, recruiting, human resources, information technology and call
center operations. Mr. Rafferty joined On Assignment in January of 2002 as Vice President of the
Diagnostic Imaging Staff division. From June 2001 through December 2002, Mr. Rafferty was the Vice
President of Sales and Marketing for E-ppraisal, a company specializing in automated real estate
valuation software for appraisers. From September 2000 through June 2001, Mr. Rafferty was the
director of financial services for CGI, Inc. From April 1999 through September 2000, Mr. Rafferty was
the director of business development for Deloitte Consulting DRT Systems. Mr. Rafferty has also held
senior management positions with MAXWorldwide, Thomson Financial Services and Institutional
Shareholder Services. Mr. Rafferty has a BS degree from the State University of New York and a
Fellowship in Corporate Change Management from Johns Hopkins University.

Michael A, Tatum has served as Senior Vice President of the Lab Support division since July 2002.
He joined On Assignment in March 2002 initially serving as Senior Vice President, Sales & Marketing.
From 2000 through 2001, Mr. Tatum was the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer for
Gluecode, Inc., a venture funded enterprise application software company. From 1999 through 2000,
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Mr. Tatum served as President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Zanova, Inc. where he
successfully guided Zanova through its merger with Onvia, Inc. in July 2000. From 1998 through 1999,
Mr. Tatum was the Group Vice President of MicroAge, Inc. a Fortune 500 company that distributed
and integrated hardware and software products for commercial accounts within North America, Latin
America and Europe. From 1996 through 1998, Mr. Tatum was the Vice President of North American
Sales for NEC Technologies, Inc.. Mr. Tatum received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Wake Forest
University in Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

PART [1
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Commeon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

On Assignment Common Stock trades on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “ASGN.”
The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices, as reported on the Nasdaq Stock
Market for each quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal years. At March 19, 2003, On
Assignment had approximately 100 holders of record, approximately 3,100 beneficial owners of its
Common Stock and 25,501,145 shares outstanding.

Price Range of
Commen Stock

High Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2001

First Quarter . $18.38
Second Quarter ‘ . $16.30
Third Quarter . $13.45
Fourth Quarter . $15.66
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002
ISt QUATEET & o o v et et e e e e e e $25.26  $17.75
Second QUATTET . . .. o oo it e e $23.96 $16.05
Third QUAITET .« . o ot et e e e e e e $17.87  $6.81
Fourth QUarter . ..o v oo e e et et e e $9.58  $5.77

Since inception, we have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our Common Stock, and we
currently plan to retain all earnings to support the development and expansion of our business. We
have no present intention of paying any dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future.
However, the Board of Directors periodically reviews our dividend policy to determine whether the
declaration of dividends is appropriate.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financial data of On Assignment as, at and for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001, and 2002. This selected financials data should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included under
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in Part II, Item 8 of this report. The financial data for
2002 includes the income statement data and balance sheet data from our acquisition of HPO on
April 19, 2002 (see Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations”).

Years Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data:

Revenues.............. ... ... .. ...... $132,741 $159,473 $195,080 $194,620 $250,313

Costofservices ..................... 90,705 107,652 131,351 131,343 176,520
Grossprofit . . ...... ... 42,036 51,821 63,729 63,277 73,793

Selling, general and administrative expenses . 25,308 30,428 35,532 38,766 54,675
Operating income . .................... 16,728 21,393 28,197 24,511 19,118

Interest income, net .................. 1,336 1,635 2,442 2,575 700
Income before income taxes . ............. 18,064 23,028 30,639 27,086 19,818

Provision for income taxes. . ............ 6,748 8,566 11,392 10,046 7,570
Netincome .........c.uiieiinnennn... $ 11,316 $ 14,462 $ 19,247 $ 17,040 $ 12,248
Basic earnings per share . . .. ............. $ 052 § 066 $ 087 § 075 § 048
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding .............. ... ... ..., 21,721 21,907 22,193 22,645 25,413
Diluted earnings per share ............... $ 050 $ 065 3 083 $ 074 § 048
Weighted average number of common and

common equivalent shares outstanding . . . . . 22,604 22,372 23,080 23,037 25,542

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and current portion of

marketable securities. . . ... ... ... ..., $ 30,466 $ 35271 § 63,122 $ 88,580 $ 33,990
Working capital . ................ .. ..., 43,987 54,769 84,717 105,851 56,996
Total assets . ......... ..., 62,028 71,740 105,556 125,251 218,147
Long-term liabilities . . .................. — — — — 2,572
Stockholders’ equity . ......... ... . ... .. 54,226 63,447 95,291 114779 201,047
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements regarding our expected financial position
and operating results, our business strategy and financing plans are forward-looking statements. These
Statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from
its expectations. Such risks and uncertainties include those discussed in this report under “Business—Risk
Factors.”

Overview

On Assignment, Inc. is a leading provider of skilled temporary professionals to clients in the
science and healthcare industries. We provide clients in these markets with short-term or long-term
assignments of temporary professionals and temporary to permanent placement of these professionals.
Our business consists of two operating segments: Healthcare Staffing and Lab Support. Through our
Healthcare Staffing segment, we are able to offer our clients temporary professionals, both locally-
based and traveling, from more than ten healthcare and medical financial occupations. These
temporary professional specialties include nurses, specialty nurses, surgical technicians, imaging
technicians, x-ray technicians, medical technicians, cytotechnologists, phlebotomists, coding, billing,
claims processing and collections staff. Through our Lab Support segment, we service the domestic and
international markets for science professionals and provide temporary and permanent placement of
scientific personnel to industrial laboratories in the biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage,
chemical, and environmental industries.

Healthcare Staffing segment revenues represented approximately 55 percent of our total revenues
for 2002, up from 28 percent in 2001. The significant increase in our Healthcare Staffing segment
revenues was principally due to our acquisition of Health Personnel Options Corporation (HPO) in
April 2002. Through this acquisition we were able to increase our participation in the growing travel
nurse industry, and we increased the number of temporary employees for our Healthcare Staffing
segment from approximately 1,300 to 2,000 as of April 2002.

In addition to our acquisition and integration of HPC, we made significant internal upgrades to
our business and infrastructure in 2002. In July 2002, we reorganized our Lab Support segment to
increase the efficiency of our field management and address organization, productivity and
compensation issues. These changes enabled us to avoid a significant performance decline of our Lab
Support segment despite a depressed demand environment, particularly for biotechnology-related
services, which represented approximately 20% of our domestic assignments made in our Lab Support
business in 2002. In November 2002, we completed the reorganization of our Healthcare Staffing
segment to more closely align our product offering with the needs of our clients and prospective clients.
In December 2002, we initiated a nurse retention program to reduce our holiday attrition rate and
better support our clients. During 2002, we also undertook a significant upgrade of our systems
infrastructure, transitioning our functionality to an enterprise wide information system utilizing
PeopleSoft software. While these changes resulted in increased expenses and lower gross margins, we
believe that going forward these changes will enable us to better execute our business strategy, reduce
our costs and drive efficiency and productivity throughout the organization.

In addition to our infrastructure investments above, we have undertaken and continue to explore
cost rationalization strategies that we believe will yield more productive and cost effective operations.
We have reviewed and continue to assess our operations, including the performance of our branch
offices in certain markets. As a result of such a review, we are in the process of winding down our
operations in Canada and Ireland. Our efforts to streamline our organization and better align our
resources and cost structure with our near-term opportunities may include, but are not limited to,
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further office closures, workforce reductions and reallocation of our personnel resources. These actions
may result in increased severance costs, legal and outplacement fees and may cause us to incur a
restructuring charge during the period when such cost containment efforts are taken.

Due to a shortage of qualified nurses and low barriers to entry, we continue to see increased
competition in the travel nurse business, particularly from local start-up companies. In recent quarters,
we have encountered price competition among temporary staffing companies in the travel nurse
business. Intensification of or the continuation of price competition in the markets in which we operate
could reduce our margins and negatively affect our revenues and market share.

Seasonality

Our results of operations have historically been subject to seasonal fluctuations. Demand for our
temporary professionals typically declines from the year-end holiday season through February, resulting
in a corresponding decrease in revenues, operating income and net income in the first quarter. Demand
for our temporary professionals also often declines in June, July and August due to decreases in clients’
activity during vacation periods and the availability of students to perform temporary work. As a result,
we have also experienced slower growth or declines in revenues, operating income and net income
during the second quarter to third quarter.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8 of this report. We prepare our Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which require us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscts and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We consider
the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing
our financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts. We estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts related to
trade receivables based on our analysis of specific accounts and historical collection experiences applied
to the remaining general accounts. For specific accounts, we use our judgment, based on available facts
and circumstances, to record a specific reserve for that customer against amounts due to reduce the
receivable to the amount that is expected to be collected. For the remaining general accounts, a general
reserve is established based on a range of percentages applied to aging categories. These percentages
are based on historical collection experience. If circumstances change, our estimates of the
recoverability of amounts due could change by a material amount.

Accrued Workers’ Compensation. We are partially self-insured for workers’ compensation expense.
The workers’ compensation program covers all of our temporary professionals and regular employees.
In connection with this program, we pay a base premium plus actual losses incurred up to certain levels
and are insured for losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. The
self-insurance claim liability is determined based on claims filed and claims incurred but not reported.
In order to ensure that the accrued workers’ compensation balance is adequate to cover all costs
incurred under our workers’ compensation program, at the end of each fiscal quarter, an actuarial
report is prepared by an independent third party who calculates our self-insurance claim liability based
on historical experience and trends of industry data. If historical experiences and industry trends
change, the self insurance claim liability calculated by the third-party actuary could change by a
material amount.
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Contingencies. We account for contingencies in accordance with FAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies.” FAS No. 5 requires that we record an estimated loss from a loss contingency when
information available prior to issuance of our financial statements indicates that it is probable that an
asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Accounting for contingencies such as legal and
workers’ compensation matters requires us to use our judgment. While we believe that our accruals for
these matters are adequate, if the actual loss from a loss contingency is significantly different than the
estimated loss, results of operations may be over or understated.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangibles. As discussed in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this report, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (FAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” as of January 1, 2002. FAS No. 142
requires, subsequent to January 1, 2002, that we review and test goodwill and indefinite lived intangible
assets for impairment on an annual basis, rather than amortize them. We may be required to review
and test for impairment more frequently if an event occurs that indicates that the assets may be
impaired. In testing for a potential impairment of goodwill, FAS 142 requires us to: (1) allocate
goodwill to our various businesses to which the acquired goodwill relates; (2) estimate the fair value of
those businesses to which goodwill relates; and (3) determine the carrying value of the businesses. If
the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value for a particular business, then we are required to
estimate the fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the business, in a manner similar to a
purchase price allocation for an acquired business. This requires independent valuations of certain
internally generated and previously unrecognized intangible assets. When this process is completed, the
amount of goodwill impairment will be determined.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill is highly subjective and requires
significant judgment at many points throughout the analysis. In estimating the fair value of the
businesses with recognized goodwill for the purposes of our 2002 financial statements, we made
estimates and judgments about the future cash flows of these businesses. Cur cashflow forecasts were
based on assumptions that are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the
underlying businesses. In addition, we made certain judgments about allocating shared assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable and accrued workers’ compensation to the estimated balance
sheet for those businesses. We also considered our market capitalization on January 1, 2002 ($22.97 per
share) and December 31, 2002 ($8.52 per share), representing the dates of our impairment tests under
FAS 142, in determining the fair value of the respective businesses.

Based on our best estimates, we have concluded that there is no impairment of our goodwill at
December 31, 2002. However, changes in these estimates or our market capitalization could cause one
or more of the businesses to be valued differently. For example, during the first quarter of 2003, while
our long-term business projections did not materially change, we experienced a significant decline in
our market capitalization. During the first half of 2003, if our market capitalization does not recover to
the levels of December 2002 (approximately $226.0 million), we may need to perform another
impairment analysis. This analysis could potentially result in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of
up to approximately $123.8 million, which is the entire goodwill balance at December 31, 2002. The
amount of goodwill impairment will depend upon the estimated value of the businesses to which the
goodwill relates and the value of the other assets and liabilities attributed to those businesses at that
time.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data
expressed as a percentage of revenues:

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002

‘ (Unaudited)
Revenues:. .. ... e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost Of SEIVICES . . . . .t ot 67.3 67.5 70.5
Gross profit . . ... .. ... 327 325 295
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . .................. 182 199 218
Operating inCome . . . . .. .. ..o 145 126 7.7
Interest INCOME, MEt . . ..ot e e e e 1.2 1.3 0.2
Income before income taxes . ........ ...t 15.7 13.9 7.9
Provision for income taxes . . . .. ... .o it 5.8 5.1 3.0
NEt INCOME . ittt e e e e e e e e e 99% 88% 4.9%

Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2002

Revenues. Revenues increased $55,693,000 or 28.6 percent from $194,620,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001, to $250,313,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Revenue resulting from
our acquisition of HPO was $94,563,000 for the period April 19, 2002 through December 31, 2002.
Excluding the effect of the HPO acquisition, our 2002 revenue decreased 20.0 percent or $38,870,000
compared to year ended December 31, 2001.

Lab Support segment’s revenues decreased $27,440,000 or 19.7 percent from $139,558,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2001 to $112,118,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in
revenue was primarily attributable to a 20.4 percent decrease in the average number of temporary
professionals on assignment and a 40.5 percent decrease in permanent placement fee revenue from
$3,751,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $2,232,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 were adversely impacted by continuing weaker
demand for our temporary professionals, particularly in the biotechnology sector, due to a slow down in
research and development spending and general economic conditions. Decreased Lab Support segment
revenues were partially offset by a 1.4 percent increase in average billing rates during the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Healthcare Staffing segment’s revenues increased by $83,133,000 or 151.0 percent from $55,062,000
for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $138,195,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Revenues resulting from our acquisition of HPO were $94,563,000 for the period April 19, 2002
through December 31, 2002. Excluding the effect of the HPO acquisition, revenue decreased
20.8 percent from $55,062,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $43,632,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. This decrease in revenue was primarily attributable to a 24.0 percent decrease in
the average number of temporary professionals on assignment. Revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2002, other than revenues related to HPO, were adversely impacted by continuing
weaker demand for our temporary professionals due to general economic conditions. Decreased
Healthcare Staffing revenues were partially offset by a 16.3 percent increase in permanent placement
fee revenue from $572,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $665,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and a 9.0 percent increase in average billing rates in the 2002 period.

Cost of Services. Cost of services consists solely of temporary professionals’ compensation, payroll
taxes, benefits, housing expense, travel expense and other employment-related expenses. Cost of
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services increased $45,177,000 or 34.4 percent from $131,343,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001
to $176,520,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cost of services attributable to the HPO
acquisition was $71,033,000 for the period April 19, 2002 through December 31, 2002. Excluding the
effect of the HPO acquisition, cost of services decreased 19.7 percent or $25,856,000 from $131,343,000
for the 2001 period to $105,487,000 for the 2002 period. The cost of services as a percentage of
revenues increased by 3.0 percent from 67.5 percent in the 2001 period to 70.5 percent in the 2002
period. The Lab Support segment’s cost of services as a percentage of segment revenues increased by
0.6 percent from 67.3 percent in the 2001 period to 67.9 percent in the 2002 period. This increase was
primarily attributable to a 0.7 percent increase in employer paid benefits and a 0.1 percent increase in
workers’ compensation expense, partially offset by a 0.2 percent decrease in temporary professionals’
compensation and payroll taxes. The Healthcare Staffing segment’s cost of services as a percentage of
segment revenues increased by 4.8 percent from 67.9 percent in the 2001 period to 72.7 percent in the
2002 period. This increase was primarily attributable to the acquisition of HPO, which has a higher cost
of services than the other divisions within the Healthcare Staffing segment, partially offset by a

4.9 percent decrease in temporary professionals’ compensation and payroll taxes, a (.2 percent decrease
in employer paid benefits and a 0.2 percent decrease in workers’ compensation expense.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include
the costs associated with our network of Staffing Consultants and branch offices, including Staffing
Consultants’ compensation, rent, other office expenses and advertising for temporary professionals.
Selling, general and administrative expenses also include our corporate and support office expenses,
such as the salaries of corporate operations and support personnel, recruiting and training expenses for
Staffing Consultants, corporate advertising and promotion, rent and other general and administrative
expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $15,909,000 or 41.0 percent from
$38,766,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, to $54,675,000 for the year ended December 31,
2002. Selling, general and administrative expenses attributable to the HPQO acquisition were $17,593,000
for the period April 19, 2002 through December 31, 2002. Excluding the effect of the HPO acquisition,
selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 4.3 percent or $1,684,000. Selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues increased from 19.9 percent for the 2001 period to
21.8 percent in the 2002 period primarily due to our internal investments in our business and
infrastructure in 2002 and higher fixed operating expenses relative to revenue.

Interest Income. Interest income, net, decreased 72.8 percent from $2,575,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001, to $700,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease was primarily
the result of lower interest rate yields earned during the 2002 period on lower interest bearing cash,
cash equivalent and marketable securities account balances, primarily due to cash used in the HPC
acquisition, and interest expense of $100,000 incurred in 2002 as a result of debt acquired in the HPC
acquisition.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes decreased 24.6 percent from $10,046,000
for the year ended December 31, 2001, to $7,570,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our
effective tax rate increased from 37.1 percent in 2001 period to 38.2 percent in the 2002 period. The
increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to a lower amount of tax-free interest income in the
2002 period.

Net Income. Net income decreased 28.1% from $17,040,00 for the year ended December 31, 2001
to $12,248,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001

Revenues. Revenues decreased by 0.2 percent from $195,080,000 for the year ended December 31,
2000, to $194,620,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, as a result of the decreased revenues of
the Lab Support and the Healthcare Staffing segments.
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The Lab Support segment’s revenues decreased by 0.3 percent from $139,986,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000, to $139,558,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in
revenue was primarily attributable to a 4.6 percent decrease in the number of temporary professionals
on assignment from December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2001, partially offset by a 4.8 percent increase
in average hourly billing rates during 2001. The decrease in the number of temporary professionals on
assignment was primarily attributable to the overall economic slowdown beginning in February 2001.

The Healthcare Staffing segment’s revenues remained relatively unchanged at $55,094,000 in the
year ended December 31, 2000 and $55,062,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The consistency
in revenue was primarily attributable to a 5.1 percent decrease in the number of temporary
professionals on assignment, offset by a 5.8 percent increase in average hourly billing rates during 2001.
The decrease in the number of temporary professionals on assignment was primarily attributable to the
overall economic slowdown beginning in February 2001.

Cost of Services. Cost of services remained relatively unchanged at $131,351,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000 and $131,343,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Lab Support
segment’s cost of services as a percentage of revenues increased by 0.2 percent from 67.1 percent in
2000 to 67.3 percent in 2001. This increase was primarily attributable to a 0.3 percent increase in
workers’ compensation and a 0.2 percent increase in employer paid benefits, partially offset by a
0.3 percent decrease in temporary professionals’ compensation and payroll taxes in 2001. The
Healthcare Staffing segment’s cost of service as a percentage of revenues remained consistent at
67.9 percent in 2000 and 2001. This result was primarily attributable to a 0.3 percent increase in
workers’ compensation and a 0.2 percent increase in employer paid benefits, offset by a 0.5 percent
decrease in temporary professionals’ compensation and payroll taxes in 2001. The increase in workers’
compensation expense in both segments resulted from higher insurance policy costs and an increase in
actual workers’ compensation claims reported and estimated incurred but not yet reported claims in
2001.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased
9.1 percent from $35,532,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000 to $38,766,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues increased
from 18.2 percent in the 2000 period to 19.9 percent in the 2001 period. This result was primarily
attributable to investments in Staffing Consultants’ training and recruiting and an increase in the
number of Staffing Consultants.

Interest Income. Interest income increased 5.5 percent from $2,442,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2000 to $2,575,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 primarily as a result of interest
earned on higher interest-bearing cash, cash equivalent and marketable securities account balances in
2001, partially offset by lower interest yields earned in 2001.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes decreased 11.8 percent from $11,392,000
for the year ended December 31, 2000 to $10,046,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Our
effective tax rate decreased slightly from 37.2 percent in 2000 to 37.1 percent in 2001.

Net Income. Net income decreased 11.5% from $19,247,000 for the year ended December 31,
2000 to $17,040,00 for the vear ended December 31, 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The change in our liquidity during the year ended December 31, 2002 is the net effect of funds
generated by operations, offset by funds used in investing activities, primarily funds used for the
acquisition of HPO (See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and funds used
for financing activities. For the year ended December 31, 2002, we generated $20,402,000 from
operations. Funds used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2002 were, $50,764,000,
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including $68,815,000 used for the acquisition of HPO. Funds used for financing activities in 2002 were
$3,813,000 and primarily were used for repayment of HPO debt assumed in the acquisition and
repurchases of common stock. Funds used for financing activities were partially offset by funds raised
through exercise of common stock options. On June 15, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized the
repurchase, from time to time, of up to 2,941,000 shares of On Assignment’s common stock. During
the year ended December 31, 2002, we repurchased 390,500 shares of our common stock on the open
market at a total cost of $3,108,000. To date we have purchased 1,524,000 shares of our common stock
at a total cost of $18,418,000.

Long-term debt totaling $5,729,000 was assumed by us in connection with our acquisition of HPO.
All of this debt has been paid during 2002. The long-term liability, shown on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2002 of $2,572,000 is the result of an accounting treatment for deferred income
taxes related to the identifiable intangible assets acquired in our acquisition of HPO and does not
otherwise impact our liquidity.

In connection with our acquisition of HPO, we entered into a merger agreement dated March 27,
2002 between On Assignment, On Assignment Acquisition Corp., HPO and certain stockholders of
HPQ. Under the terms of the merger agreement, $15 million of the merger consideration payable to
HPO was deposited in escrow pursuant to an escrow agreement dated April 19, 2002 by and between
On Assignment, an HPO stockholder representative and an escrow agent, with $§5 million of the
escrowed funds subject to recovery by On Assignment in the event that HPO failed to meet a certain
revenue hurdle specified in the merger agreement for the 2002 calendar year. In January 2003, Cn
Assignment notified the HPO Stockholder Representative that HPO did not meet the revenue hurdle
and, in accordance with the merger agreement, requested that $5 million of the merger consideration
be returned to On Assignment in the form of $2,500,000 in cash and $2,500,000 in shares of On
Assignment’s common stock (equivalent to 281,057 shares of our common stock based on a 10-day
average price determined under the terms of the merger agreement). In March 2003, the HPO
stockholder representative instructed the escrow agent to deliver the return amount to us. In March
2003, this amount was received.

Our working capital at December 31, 2002 was $56,996,000, including $31,990,000 in cash and cash
equivalents. Our working capital requirements consist primarily of the financing of accounts receivables.
Although we currently do not have a borrowing facility in place, we believe we have the ability to enter
into a borrowing facility if and when we deem such facility appropriate. While there can be no
assurances in this regard, we expect that internally-generated cash together with our borrowing ability
will be sufficient to support our working capital needs and other obligations on both a short-term and
long-term basis.

Commitments and Contingencies

We are currently implementing a PeopleSoft enterprise wide information technology system.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, we incurred approximately $3,370,000 in capital
expenditures related to this project. There were no costs incurred for this project prior to 2002, We
expect to incur an additional $3 million to $4 million in capital expenditures over the next 12 months
related to our PeopleSoft enterprise wide information technology system, leasehold improvements and
various equipment purchases.

As discussed in “Business” contained in this report, we lease space for our corporate and branch
offices. During 2002, we entered into an amendment to our original lease with respect to our corporate
offices located in Calabasas, California. This agreement calls for a seven-year extension of the existing
lease term from March 2004 to March 2011. We have committed to base rental payments totaling
$6,119,000 over the term of the agreement with the last monthly payment due on March 1, 2011. Rent
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expense for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 was $2,995,000, $3,895,000 and $4,784,000,
respectively.

The following table sets forth, on an aggregate basis, at December 31, 2002 the amounts of
specified contractual cash obligations required to be paid in the periods shown (in thousands):

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total

Long-termdebt ... ............. $ — $§ — § — § — % — § — § —
Operating leases ............... 3,704 3,065 2,590 1,704 1,123 2,732 14,918
Capital leases . ................ — — — — — — —
Purchase obligations. . . .......... — — — — — — —
Other long-term liabilities . ....... — — — — — — —

Total contractual cash obligations ... $3,704 $3,065 $2,590 $1,704 $1,123 $2,732  $14918

For additional information about these contractual cash obligations, see Note 5 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements appearing in Item & of this report.

We are involved in various legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. However, based on the facts currently available, we do not believe that the disposition of
matters that are pending or asserted will have a materially adverse effect on our financial position.

We are partially self-insured for workers’ compensation expense. In connection with this program,
we pay a base premium plus actual losses incurred up to certain levels and are insured for losses
greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. The self-insurance claim liability is
determined based on claims filed and claims incurred but not yet reported. We account for claims
incurred but not yet reported based on actuarial reports prepared by an independent third party who
reviews historical experience and current trends of industry data. Changes in estimates and differences
in estimates and actual payments for claims are recognized in the period that the estimates changed or
payments were made. The self-insurance claim liability amounted to approximately $2,662,000 and
$3,048,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Inflation

Inflation did not have a material impact on our operating results in 2000, 2001 or 2002.

Recent Accounting Pronocuncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” FAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted for using
one method, the purchase method. The provisions of FAS No. 141 apply to all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001. The adoption of FAS No. 141 by us as of July 1, 2001 did not have a
material impact on our financial statements. FAS No. 142 includes requirements to test goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment rather than amortize them. Other intangible assets will
continue to be amortized over their useful lives. We adopted FAS No. 142 as of January 1, 2002. We
completed the transitional test of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets during the second
quarter of 2002. Based on the results of this test, we determined that there was no impairment of
goodwill or indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1, 2002. Pursuant to FAS No. 142, goodwill
and other indefinite lived intangible assets will be tested for impairment at least annually and more
frequently if an event occurs which indicates that the assets may be impaired. We performed this test
during the fourth quarter of 2002 and determined there was no impairment of goodwill or indefinite
lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2002.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” FAS No. 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting issues for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This statement supersedes FAS No. 121 but retains the
fundamental provisions for (a) recognition/measurement of impairment of long-lived assets to be held
and used and (b) measurement of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales. It is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We adopted

FAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002. The adoption by us of FAS No. 144 did not have a material impact
on our financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities,” which is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after
December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged. FAS No. 146 addresses financial accounting and
. reporting for the costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Costs to Exit and Disposal Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” FAS
No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized
when the liability is incurred and establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurements of
the liability. We believe that the adoption of FAS No. 146 will not have a material impact on our
financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment of FAS No. 123.” FAS No. 148 amends FAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, FAS No. 148 amends the disclosure in both annual and interim financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the methods used on
reported results. The disclosure requirements apply to all companies for fiscal years ended after
December 15, 2002. See Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the required
disclosures of FAS No. 148 at December 31, 2002.

Item 7A. Quamntitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions in the normal course of business,
principally risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. We are exposed to
interest rate risk from our held to maturity investments. The interest rate risk is immaterial due to the
short maturity of the majority of these investments. We are exposed to foreign currency risk from the
translation of foreign operations into U.S. dollars. Based on the relative size and nature of our foreign
operations, we do not believe that a ten percent change in foreign currencies would have a material
impact on our financial statements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUBITORS

To the Board of Directors of
On Assignment, Inc.
Calabasas, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of On Assignment, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of On Assignment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” effective January 1,
2002.

,&Q&)&Q g Joceet Cef

Los Angeles, California
March 25, 2003
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities . . . ... ... ...
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,667,000 (2001)
and $2,491,000 (2002) . . . . ..o
Advancesand deposits . . ... ...
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes receivable . . .. ... .. L
Deferred inCOME taXES . . . . vt ittt e e
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and Equipment, net . . . .. ... .. ... e
Marketable securities . . .. .. ... .. e
Deferred income taxes
Workers’ compensation restricted deposits . .. ... ... oL oo o
Goodwill, net
Identifiable intangible assets, net
Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Income taxes payable. . . ...... ... .. L
Deferred compensation . .. ... ... L
Accrued workers’ compensation
Other accrued €XpeNSES . . . .. oo vt

Total current liabilities

Deferred INCOMeE taXeS . . . . h v v vt i e et e e e e
Total lHabilities . . . .. . oo e e e e e

Commitments and Contingencies . .. ................. ... ... ... ...
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or
outstanding in 2001 and 2002
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized, 23,786,266 issued
and outstanding in 2001 and 27,902,461 issued and outstanding in 2002 . . . . ..
Paid-in capital
Deferred compensation liability . . . ........ ... ... oo oo
Retained earnings . . .. ... ... . . . e
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . ........ ... ... o L ..

Less: Treasury Stock at cost, 1,133,500 shares in 2001 and 1,524,000 shares in 2002 .
Total stockholders’ equity .. ....... ... . . .. . ..
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

December 31,

2001

2002

$ 65,694,000

$ 31,990,000

22,886,000 2,000,000
22,782,000 30,296,000
149,000 353,000
2,030,000 1,653,000
123,000 —
2,659,000 2,732,000
—_ 2,500,000
116,323,000 71,524,000
2,804,000 7,377,000
2,000,000 —
454,000 —
77,000 88,000
1,542,000 123,835,000
2,000 13,478,000
2,049,000 1,845,000
$125,251,000  $218,147,000
$ 557,000 § 1,433,000
4,740,000 6,178,000
— 483,000
1,736,000 1,351,000
2,662,000 3,048,000
777,000 2,015,000
10,472,000 14,528,000
_— 2,572,000
10,472,000 17,100,000
238,000 279,000
40,402,000 116,961,000
294,000 265,000
89,137,000 101,385,000
18,000 575,000
130,089,000 219,465,000
15,310,000 18,418,000
114,779,000 201,047,000
$125,251,000  $218,147,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Revenues ........ ... . .. . . i $195,080,000 $194,620,000 $250,313,000
Cost Of SEIVICES . . v vt ittt et i e e 131,351,000 131,343,000 176,520,000
Grossprofit. .. ... 63,729,000 63,277,000 73,793,000
Selling, general and administrative expenses. ... ..... 35,532,000 38,766,000 54,675,000
Operating income . . ........ .. i 28,197,000 24,511,000 19,118,000
Interest income, net . ... .ttt 2,442,000 2,575,000 700,000
Income before income taxes . .. ........ ... 30,639,000 27,086,000 19,818,000
Provision for income taxes . ..........c...uu.u... 11,392,000 10,046,000 7,570,000
Netineome . . ..ot e e e e e $ 19,247,000 $ 17,040,000 $ 12,248,000
Basic earnings pershare. . ......... ... ... . ... $ 0.87 $ 075 % 0.48
Weighted average number of Common Shares :
Outstanding . . . . . ... ...t e 22,193,000 22,645,000 25,413,000
Diluted earnings per share . . .. ................... $ 083 $ 074 $ 0.48
Weighted average number of Common and Common :
Equivalent Shares Outstanding . . ................ 23,080,000 23,037,000 25,542,000

CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
NELINCOME .« oo ittt it e L $19,247,000 $17,040,000 $12,248,000
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment . ............. 26,000 3,000 557,000
Comprehensive INCOME . .. .. ..., $19,273,000 $17,043,000 $12,805,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Netincome . ... ...t e e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization . ..................
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts . ... ... ...
Increase in deferred income taxes . . ...............
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Income tax benefit of disqualifying dispositions

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable ..........
Decrease (Increase) in income taxes receivable
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease (Increase) in workers’ compensation restricted
deposits . .. .o
Decrease (Increase) in accounts payable and accrued
EXPEINSES o o v v v e e
Increase (Decrease) in income taxes payable .........
Increase (Decrease) in other assets .. ..............

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of marketable securities . ... ...............
Proceeds from the maturity of marketable securities
Acquisition of property and equipment . . .............

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment .........
(Increase) Decrease in advances and deposits ... .......

Repayments of officer loan receivable. ... ............
Cash used in acquisition, net of cash received . . .. ... ...
Other asset—HPO earn out provision. .. .............

Net cash used for investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options

Proceeds from issuance of common stock—Employee
Stock Purchase Plan. . . ........... ... ... ... ....

Repurchases of common stock .. ......... . ... ...
Payments on notes payable
Payments on capital leases . . .. ........... ... .. ....

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities . . .

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . .

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents. . . . .
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . .. ... ..

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

Years Ended December 31,

20600 2001

2002

$19,247,000 $17,040,000 $12,248,000

1,392,000 1,537,000 5,143,000
699,000 293,000 1,045,000
(339,000)  (379,000)  (2,632,000)
28,000 — 12,000
3,751,000 2,572,000 713,000
(5,644,000) 4,539,000 3,410,000
681,000  (126,000) 123,000
174,000  (407,000) 486,000
(68,000) 160,000 29,000
1,579,000 684,000  (4,260,000)
425000  (432,000) 3,861,000
(519,000)  (536,000) 224,000
21,406,000 24,945,000 20,402,000
(7,121,000) (26,645,000)  (2,000,000)
5,195,000 17,093,000 24,886,000
(1,111,000)  (855,000)  (4,659,000)
— 2,000 1,000
(158,000) 81,000  (177,000)
400,000 — —
(360,000) —  (66,315,000)
— — (2,500,000
(3,155,000 (10,324,000) (50,764,000)
8,559,000 7,137,000 4,799,000
261,000 234,000 225,000
—  (7,498,000)  (3,108,000)

— — (5,498,000)

— — (231,000
8,820,000  (127,000)  (3,813,000)
11,000 (2,000) 471,000
27,082,000 14,492,000  (33,704,000)
24,120,000 51,202,000 65,694,000
$51,202,000 $65,694,000  $31,990,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001

2002

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for:
Interest — 3 —

$ 71,000

$6,906,000  $8,412,000

§ 4,912,000

Acquisition:
Fair value of assets acquired, net of cash received $ —
Goodwill 360,000 —
Long-term debt assumed —
Stock issued —

$ 20,585,000
122,293,000
(5,729,000)
(70,834,000)

$ 360,000 —

$ 66,315,000

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




ON ASSIGNMENT, INC,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended Decémber 31, 20600, 2001 and 2002

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

On Assignment, Inc. (the “Company”), has two operating segments: Lab Support and Healthcare
Staffing. The Lab Support segment provides temporary and permanent placement of scientific
personnel with laboratories and other institutions. The Healthcare Staffing segment provides temporary
and permanent placement of medical billing and collection professionals, laboratory and medical
professionals and traveling nurses, laboratory, radiology and respiratory personnel to the healthcare
industry. Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investments
having a maturity of more than three months and less than twelve months are classified under current
assets as marketable securities. Investments having a maturity of more than twelve months are classified
under non-current assets as marketable securities.

Marketable securities consist principally of Tax Exempt Municipal Bonds and Debt Securities
issued by U.S. Government Agencies with maturity dates greater than three months when purchased.
All marketable securities are classified as held-to-maturity and are recorded at amortized cost, which
approximated market at December 31, 2001 and 2002.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities at December 31, 2001 and
2002 are as follows:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
2001:
Current marketable securities .......... $22,886,000 $389,000 $— $23,275,000
Non-current marketable securities . ... ... 2,000,000 106,000 — 2,106,000
Total ... oo $24,886,000  $495,000 $: $25,381,000
2002:
Current marketable securities .......... $ 2,000,000 § 5,000 $— $ 2,005,000
Non-current marketable securities . ... ... — — — —
Total ... ... $ 2,000,000 $ 5,000 $_— $ 2,005,000

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are stated net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately $1,667,000 and $2,491,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Allowance for
doubtful accounts is established and maintained based on estimates made by management through its
review of specific accounts and historical collection activity. The Company recorded bad debt expense
of approximately $699,000, $293,000 and $1,045,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002, respectively.
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Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and
amortization are provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets, generally three to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life
of the related asset or the life of the lease.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangibles. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over
the fair value of the net assets acquired. Upon adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(FAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002, the Company discontinued
the amortization of goodwill. During 2000 and 2001, the Company amortized goodwill on a straight-line
basis over 15 years. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment at
least annually and any related impairment losses recognized in earnings when identified. There were no
such impairments of goodwill and intangible assets during the periods presented. See Note 3 for the
effect of adopting FAS No. 142. Purchased intangible assets, with finite lives, are amortized over their
respective lives (up to 7 years) on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates long-lived assets, other than goodwill
and identifiable intangible assets with indefinite lives, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized when the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of
the asset, in which case a write-down is recorded to reduce the related asset to its estimated fair value.
No such impairment losses have been recognized as of December 31, 2002.

In August 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” FAS No. 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting issues for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. This statement supersedes FAS No. 121 but retains the
fundamental provisions for (a) recognition/measurement of impairment of long-lived assets to be held
and used; and (b) measurement of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sales. It is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early
application encouraged. The Company adopted FAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002. Adoption by the
Company of FAS No. 144 did not have a material impact on its financial statements.

Income Taxes. Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the bases of
assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
represent future tax consequences of these differences, which will either be taxable or deductible when
the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

Stockholders Equity. On August 24, 2000, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment of
Restated Certificate of Incorporation (The “Certificate of Amendment”) with the Secretary of the State
of Delaware. The Certificate of Amendment increased the authorized number of shares of common
stock from 25,000,000 to 75,000,000 and increased the combined authorized number of shares of
preferred and common stock from 26,000,000 to 76,000,000. The Certificate of Amendment was
approved by the Company’s stockholders on June 13, 2000.

On June 15, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to 10 percent
or of its outstanding shares of common stock in addition to 660,000 shares previously repurchased for a
total of 2,941,000 shares of common stock. At December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, the
Company had repurchased 1,133,500 shares and 1,524,000 shares of its common stock at a total cost of
$15,310,000 and $18,418,000, respectively. At December 31, 2002, the Company has remaining
authorization to repurchase 1,417,000 shares.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from temporary assignments, net of credits and discounts, is
recognized when earned, based on hours worked by the Company’s temporary professionals on a
weekly basis. Permanent placement fees are recognized when earned, upon conversion of a temporary
professional to a client’s regular employee. Reimbursements, including those related to travel and
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out-of-pocket expenses, are included in revenues and equivalent amounts of reimbursable expenses are
included in cost of services.

Cost of Services. Cost of services consist of compensation for temporary professionals and the
related payroll taxes and benefits incurred with respect to such compensation. Cost of services are
recognized when incurred based on hours worked by the Company’s temporary professionals.

Foreign Currency Translation. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, where the functional
currency is the local currency, are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange in effect on the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing
during the period. The related translation adjustments are recorded as cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustments in accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions, which are not
material, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Eamings per Share. Basic earnings per share are computed based upon the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding and diluted earnings per share are computed based upon the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive common share equivalents
(consisting of incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options) outstanding during the periods
using the treasury stock method. Following is a reconciliation of the shares used to compute basic and
diluted earnings per share:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Weighted average number of shares outstanding used
to compute basic earnings per share............. 22,193,000 22,645,000 25,413,000
Dilutive effect of stock options .. ................ 887,000 392,000 129,000
Number of shares used to compute diluted earnings
Pershare ......... .. ... 23,080,000 23,037,000 25,542,000

Anti-dilutive options excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share totaled 125,164
shares, 600,794 shares and 1,751,373 shares for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. 1In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an Amendment of FAS No. 123.” FAS No. 148
amends FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of
transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, FAS No. 148 amends the disclosure in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of
the methods used on reported results. The disclosure requirements apply to all companies for fiscal
years ended after December 15, 2002.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans, as
more fully described in Note 7. The Company has adopted the disclosure only provisions of FAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and, therefore, no stock-based employee
compensation cost is reflected in net income. The following table illustrates the effect on the net
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income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FAS
No. 123 to stock based employee compensation.

Years Ended December 31,
2069 2001 2002

Net income—as reported $19,247,000 $17,040,000 $12,248,000
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects 3,022,000 3,819,000 $ 4,028,600

Net income—pro forma $16,225,000 $13,221,000 $ 8,220,000

Earnings per share:
Basic—as reported 0.87 075 $ 0.48
Basic—pro forma 0.73 0.58 $ 0.32

$
$

Diluted—as reported 0.83 0.74 0.48
Diluted—pro forma 0.70 0.57 0.32

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit
risks consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade receivables. The
Company places its cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities with quality credit institutions
and limits the amount of credit exposure with any one institution. Concentration of credit risk with
respect to accounts receivable are limited because of the large number of geographically dispersed
customers, thus spreading the trade credit risk. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations to
identify risks and maintains an allowance to address these risks.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The recorded values of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their fair value
based on their short-term nature. The fair values of marketable securities were estimated using quoted
market prices.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. FAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities,” is effective for all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. FAS
No. 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities. Under
FAS No. 133, certain contracts that were not formerly considered derivatives may now meet the
definition of a derivative. The Company has adopted FAS No. 133 effective January 1, 2001. The
adoption of FAS No. 133 did not have a material impact on the financial position, results of operations
or cash flows of the Company. The Company does not hold any derivative instruments or engage in
any hedging activities.

EXxit or Disposal Activities. FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, with
early application encouraged. The Company believes that the adoption of FAS No. 146 will not have a
material effect on its financial statements.
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Reclassifications.  Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year consolidated financial
statements to conform with the current year consolidated financial statement presentation.

2. Property and Equipment.
Property and equipment at December 31, 2001 and 2002, consisted of the following:

2001 2002

Furniture and fiXtures . . . ... .ot e $ 1,436,000 $ 1,802,000
Computers and related equipment . .. ..................... 3,346,000 4,419,000
Machinery and equipment . . .. ... ... oo oL, 1,369,000 1,128,000
Leaschold improvements . . ... ... ... 1,302,000 1,520,000
Construction in Progress . .. ...ov v vttt 37,000 3,403,000

7,490,000 12,272,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. . ............ (4,686,000) (4,895,000)
Total .. e $ 2,804,000 $ 7,377,000

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was
$1,254,000, $1,384,000 and $1,916,000, respectively.

The Company is currently implementing an enterprise wide information technology system. Under the
provisions of Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” the Company capitalizes costs associated with customized
internal-use software systems that have reached the application stage and meet recoverability tests.
Such capitalized costs include external direct costs utilized in developing or obtaining the applications
and payroll and payroll-related expenses for employees who are directly associated with the
applications. Amortization of such costs begins when the preliminary project stage is complete and the
asset is ready for its intended purpose. The Company expects the current implementation project to be
completed within the next twelve months. The Company has capitalized approximately $3,370,000 at
December 31, 2002.

3.  Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets.

Goodwill of $1,542,000 and $123,835,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, represents
the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired (see Note 10) and relates
to the Healthcare Staffing segment. Amortization expense was $134,000, $151,000 and $0 for the years
ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002.

In June 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and FAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The provisions of FAS No. 141 apply to all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. The adoption by the Company of FAS No. 141 as of July 1,
2001 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

FAS No. 142 includes requirements to test goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets for
impairment rather than amortize them. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their
useful lives. The Company adopted FAS No. 142 as of January 1, 2002. The Company completed the
transitional test of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets during the second quarter of 2002 and
subsequently tested for impairment during the fourth quarter of 2002. Based on the results of these
tests, the Company determined that there was no impairment of goodwill or indefinite lived intangible
assets as of January 1, 2002 and subsequently on December 31, 2002.

FAS No. 142 requires the Company to test goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets for
impairment at least annually and more frequently if an event occurs that indicates that the assets may
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be impaired. Such an event would include a permanent decline in the Company’s market value.
Although the Company’s market value has declined subsequent to its impairment test, the Company
believes the market value decline is not permanent. If the Company’s market value does not return
within a reasonable time to the value at December 31, 2002, the Company will then review and test the
value of goodwill and indefinite lived assets for impairment rather than wait for the scheduled annual
test.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2002, are as
follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2001 $ 1,542,000
Goodwill acquired 122,293,000

Balance as of December 31, 2002 $123,835,000

As of December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, the Company had the following acquired
intangible assets:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 20602

Gross Net Estimated Gross Net Estimated
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Useful Carrying  Accumnulated  Carrying Useful
Amount Amortization Amount Life Amount  Amortization  Amount Life

Intangible assets subject
to amortization:

Customer relations. . . . $ — 3 —  $ — — $ 11,100,000 $1,943,000 $ 9,157,000 7 years
Contractor relations . . . — — — — 3,900,000 546,000 3,354,000 S years
Covenants not to

compete . .. ... ... 40,000 38,000 2,000 2 years 737,000 280,000 457,000 2 years
Employment

agreements . . ... .. — — — — 600,000 210,000 390,000 2 years
Backlog. ... ....... — — — — 400,000 280,000 120,000 1 year
Total . ........... $ 40,000 $ 38,000 $ 2,000 $ 16,737,000 $3,259,000 $ 13,478,000
Intangible assets not

subject to

amortization:
Goodwill . .. ....... $2,179,000  $637,000  $1,542,000 $124,472,000 $ 637,000 $123,835,000
Total . ........... $2,179,000  $637,000  $1,542,000 $124,472,000 $ 637,000 $123,835,000

Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization was $3,000 and $3,221,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Estimated annual amortization for each of
the years ended December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2007 is $4.0 million, $3.1 million,
$2.5 million, $2.1 million and $1.1 million, respectively.
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A reconciliation of reported net income to net income adjusted to reflect the adoption of FAS
No.142 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Reported net income . . .. ................... $19,247,000 $17,040,000 $12,248,000
Add back: goodwill amortization .............. 134,000 151,000 —
Adjusted netincome .. ...... ... . o $19,381,000 $17,191,000 $12,248,000
Reported basic earnings per share ............. $ 087 $ 075 § 0.48
Adjusted basic earnings pershare.............. $ 087 § 076 $ 0.48
Reported diluted earnings per share . ........... $ 083 $ 074 § 0.48
Adjusted diluted earnings per share . ........... $ 0.84 3§ 075 $ 0.48

4. 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan, Deferred Compensation Plan and Change in Control Severance
Plan.

Effective January 1, 1995, the Company adopted the On Assignment, Inc. 401(k) Retirement
Savings Plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result of the Company’s
acquisition of HPO in April 2002, the Company assumed the HPO 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan
established on September 1, 1997. Eligible employees may elect to have a portion of their salary
deferred and contributed to the plans. The amount of salary deferred is not subject to Federal and
State income tax at the time of deferral. The plans cover all eligible employees and provide for
matching or discretionary contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The Company made
no matching or discretionary contributions to the plans during the years ended December 31, 2000,
2001 and made a matching contribution of $189,000 to the Plans during the year ended December 31
2002.

Effective January 1, 1998, the Company implemented the On Assignment, Inc. Deferred
Compensation Plan. The plan permits a select group of management or highly compensated employees
or directors to annually elect to defer up to 100 percent of their base salary, annual bonus, stock option
gain or fees on a pre-tax basis and earn tax-deferred interest on these amounts. Distributions from the
plan are made at retirement, death or termination of employment, in a lump sum, or over five, ten or
fifteen years. At December 31, 2001 and 2002, the liability under the plan was approximately $1,736,000
and $1,351,000, respectively. A life insurance policy is maintained on the participants relating to the
plan, whereby the Company is the sole owner and beneficiary of such insurance. The cash surrender
value of this life insurance policy, which is reflected in other assets, was approximately $1,586,000 and
$1,319,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

During 1999, a participant in the Deferred Compensation Plan performed a stock-for-stock
exercise resulting in a gain to the participant of approximately $294,000. A stock certificate for 19,764
shares was issued into a rabbi trust in the Company’s name. The employer stock held by the rabbi trust
has been classified in equity in the same manner as treasury stock, with a reduction in shares
outstanding and a corresponding reduction to Paid-in Capital. The corresponding deferred
compensation liability is also shown as a separate component in equity. There is no effect on the
Consolidated Statements of Income as a result of this transaction. During 2002, the participant received
a disbursement of 1,976 shares of employer stock from the rabbi trust (based on 10 year distribution
schedule). The distribution resulted in an increase in shares outstanding and a corresponding increase
to paid in capital. The corresponding deferred compensation liability shown as a component in equity
was reduced by $29,000.
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On February 12, 1998, the Company adopted the On Assignment, Inc. Change in Control
Severance Plan (“the Plan”) to provide severance benefits for officers and other eligible employees who
are terminated following an acquisition of the Company. Under the Plan, if an eligible employee is
involuntarily terminated within 18 months of a change in control, as defined in the Plan, then the
employee will be entitled to salary plus target bonus payable in a lump sum. The amounts payable
would range from one month to 18 months of salary and target bonus depending on the employee’s
length of service and position with the Company.

5. Commitments and Contingencies.

The Company leases its facilities and certain office equipment under operating leases, which expire
at various dates through 2011. Certain leases contain rent escalations and/or renewal options. At
December 31, 2001 and 2002, the balance of deferred rent liability was $0 and $153,000, respectively,
and is included in other accrued expenses.

The following is a summary of future minimum lease payments by year:

Operating
Leases

$ 3,704,000
3,065,000
2,590,000
1,704,000
1,123,000
2,732,000

$14918,000

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was $2,995,000, $3,895,000
and $4,784,000, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal proceedings, claims and litigation
arising in the ordinary course of business. However, based on the facts currently available, management
believes that the disposition of matters that are pending or asserted will not have a materially adverse
effect on the financial position of the Company.

The Company is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation expense. In connection with this
program, the Company pays a base premium plus actual losses incurred up to certain levels and is
insured for losses greater than certain levels per occurrence and in the aggregate. The Company is
required to maintain cash deposits for the payment of losses and as collateral amounting to $77,000
and $88,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. These workers’ compensation deposits are
restricted as to withdrawal and have therefore been classified as non-current assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. These funds are invested primarily in three-month treasury
bills and are recorded at amortized cost, which approximated market at December 31, 2001 and 2002.
The self-insurance claim liability is determined based on claims filed and claims incurred but not yet
reported. The Company accounts for claims incurred but not yet reported based on actuarial reports
prepared by an independent third party who reviews historical experience and current trends of
industry data. Changes in estimates and differences in estimates and actual payments for claims are
recognized in the period that the estimates changed or payments were made. The self-insurance claim
liability amounted to approximately $2,662,000 and $3,048,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.
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6. Income Taxes.

Income before provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
United STAtes . . . ..o oot e 30,770,000 25,699,000 18,093,000
FOTEIEN .+« v e e e et e e (131,000) 1,387,000 1,725,000

30,639,000 27,086,000 19,818,000

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Current:

Federal . . ... 0. $10,385,000 $ 8,726,000 $3,375,000
State . . ... 1,449,000 1,160,000 896,000
Foreign . ...... ... .. .. . i (74,000) 575,000 346,000
11,760,000 10,461,000 4,617,000

Deferred:
Federal . . ... . (439,000) (337,000) 2,425,000
State . . 69,000 (32,000) 242,000
Foreign........ ... .. .. .. .. ... . . .. 2,000 {46,000) 286,000
(368,000) (415,000) 2,953,000
Total ... $11,392,000 $10,046,000 $7.,570,000

At December 31, 2002, the Company has accumulated net foreign earnings of $1,363,000. The
Company does not plan to repatriate these earnings, therefore, no U.S. income tax has been provided
on the foreign earnings. If such earnings were distributed, U.S. income taxes would be partially reduced
for taxes paid to the jurisdictions in which the income was earned. Additionally, the Company has not
tax effected the cumulative translation adjustment as there is no intention of repatriating foreign
earnings.

Deferred income taxes arise from the recognition of certain assets and liabilities for tax purposes
in periods different from those in which they are recognized in the financial statements. These
differences relate primarily to purchased intangibles, workers’ compensation, state taxes, bad debt,
deferred compensation, and depreciation and amortization expenses.

Deferred assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current according to the nature of
the assets or liabilities from which they arose.
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The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002
Federal State Federal State

Deferred tax assets:
Current:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 504,000 $ 43,000 $§ 606,000 $ 85,000

Employee related accruals 605,000 51,000 572,000 60,000
State taxes 410,000 — 354,000 —
Workers’ compensation loss reserve 917,000 77,000 956,000 99,000

52,000 — — _

Total current deferred tax assets 2,488,000 171,000 2,488,000 244,000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Non-current:
Purchased intangibles, net — —  (2,856,000) (339,000)
Depreciation and amortization expense 228,000 19,000 229,000 24,000
180,000 27,000 341,000 29,000

Total non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities) . . . . 408,000 46,000  (2,286,000) (286,000)
Total deferred tax assets (liabilities) $2,896,000 $217,000 § 202,000 $ (42,000)

The net operating loss carryforwards included in other non-current deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2001 and 2002 were acquired through the 1994 acquisition of 1st Choice Personnel, Inc.
These carryforwards, which total $31,000 at December 31, 2002, are available to offset future taxable
income, subject to annual limitations, through the year 2009. Foreign deferred tax assets and liabilities
were not material as of December 31, 2001 and 2002.

The reconciliation between the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of
35 percent in 2000, 2001 and 2002 to income before income taxes and the actual income taxes is as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Income tax expenses at the statutoryrate. ............... $10,724,000 $ 9,480,000 $6,936,000
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit .. ... .. 1,449,000 1,235,000 684,000
Tax-free interest and other ... ....................... (781,000) (669,000) (50,000)
Total . .. e $11,392,000 $10,046,000 $7,570,000

The Company receives a tax deduction as the result of disqualifying dispositions made by directors,
officers and employees. A disqualifying disposition occurs when stock acquired through the exercise of
incentive stock options or the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is disposed of prior to the required
holding period or upon exercise of a non-qualified stock option. At December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
net income taxes payable and additional paid-in capital include tax benefits amounting to $3,751,000,
$2,572,000 and $713,000, respectively, resulting from disqualifying dispositions by directors, officers and
employees.

7. Stock Option Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Under its Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant employees, contractors, and non-employee
members of the Board of Directors incentive or non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of its
common stock. On June 13, 2000, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the Stock
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Option Plan that increased the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the
Stock Option Plan from 8,000,000 shares to 10,000,000 shares. On June 18, 2002, the Board of
Directors extended the term of the Stock Option Plan, which would have ended on June 21, 2002. The
termination date of the Stock Option Plan is now June 17, 2012. Optionees, option prices, option
amounts, grant dates and vesting are established by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors. The option prices may not be less than 85 percent of the fair market value of the stock at
the time the option is granted. The Company generally issues stock options at the fair market value.
Stock options granted to date generally become exercisable over a period of four years and have a
maximum term of ten years measured from the grant date.

The following summarizes stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002:

Weighted
Incentive Non-Qualified Average
Stock Stock Exercise Price

Options Options Per Share

Outstanding at January 1,2000 .............. ... 1,619,622 1,200,976 $12.32
Granted ......... ... e e 539,906 199,294 $25.11
Exercised ......... ... .. ... . . .. (402,778)  (390,483) $10.79
Canceled............. ... ... (374,096) (22,348) $15.99
Outstanding at December 31, 2000. .............. 1,382,654 087,439 $16.19
Granted ... ... .. e 623,783 404,467 $19.21
Exercised .......... .. . (343,977)  (292,374) $11.23
Canceled. .. ..... .. i (510,970)  (175,588) $20.20
Outstanding at December 31,2001............... 1,151,490 923,944 $18.07
Granted . ....... .. . .. 303,234 1,116,066 $16.50
Exercised .......... . ... (97,065)  (228,689) $14.75
Canceled. .. ... .. i e (443,568)  (323,999) $20.38
Outstanding at December 31, 2002. . ............. 914,091 1,487,322 $16.93

The following summarizes pricing and term information for options outstanding as of
December 31, 2002:

Options Cutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Number Average
Outstanding at Remaining Weighted Exercisable at Weighted
Range of December 31, Contractuoal Average December 31, Average
Exercise Prices 2002 Life Exercise Price 2002 Exercise Price
$ 250 to $11.50 524,468 8.4 years $ 9.03 121,595 $10.05
11.8125 to  17.29 506,943 7.6 years 15.51 297,827 14.86
1730 to 19.66 486,120 8.7 years 18.36 144,696 18.24
19.68 to 20.87 592,308 9.3 years 20.21 101,461 19.89
21.00 to 33.00 291,574 8.1 years 25.54 161,543 24.78
$ 250 to $33.00 2,401,413 8.5 years $16.93 827,122 $17.30

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan allows eligible employees to purchase common stock of the
Company, through payroll deductions, at 85 percent of the lower of the market price on the first day or
the last day of the semi-annual purchase period. Eligible employees may contribute intervals of
1 percent of their base earnings toward the purchase of the stock (subject to certain IRS limitations).
During 2000, 2001 and 2002 shares issued under the plan were 18,307, 13,297 and 19,487, respectively.
On June 18, 2002, the Board of Directors extended the term of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
which would have ended on August 31, 2002, until August 31, 2022.
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The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in
accounting for its Stock Option Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan and accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized for its stock option and purchase plans. The Company has
adopted the disclosure only provisions of FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
The estimated fair value of options granted during 2000, 2001 and 2002 pursuant to FAS No. 123 was
approximately $9,488,000, $10,019,000 and $11,916,000, respectively, and the estimated fair value of
stock purchased under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan was approximately $94,000,
$112,000 and $86,000, respectively. Pro forma compensation cost of shares purchased under the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan is measured based on the discount from market value.

The fair value of each option included is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,

2096 2001 2002
Dividendyield ....... ... .. ... . . — — —
Risk-free interest rate . . . .. ... . i 5.9% 4.5% 3.8%
Expected volatility . . . .. ... ... . 54% 55% 58%
Expected lives. . . ... oo Syears 5years 5 years

8. Business Segments.

Indicated below is the information required to comply with FAS No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”

The Company has two reportable operating segments: Lab Support and Healthcare Staffing. The
Lab Support segment provides temporary and permanent placement services of laboratory and scientific
professionals to the biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food and beverage, chemical industries. The
Healthcare Staffing segment includes the combined results of Healthcare Financial Staffing, Clinical
Lab Staff, Diagnostic Imaging Staff, Nurse Travel and Allied Travel divisions. The Healthcare Staffing
segment provides temporary and permanent placement services of medical billing and collection
professionals, laboratory and medical professionals and traveling nurses, laboratory, radiology, and
respiratory personnel to the healthcare industry.

The Company’s management evaluates performance of each segment primarily based on revenues,
gross profit and operating income (before interest and income taxes). The accounting policies of the
segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (see
Note 1). The information in the following table is derived directly from the segments’ internal financial
reporting used for corporate management purposes. Certain corporate expenses are not allocated to
and/or among the operating segments. The following table represents revenues, gross profit and

operating income by operating segment:
P & 58 Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Revenues:
LabSupport......... ... ... $139,986,000 $139,558,000 $112,118,000
Healthcare Staffing . . .................. 55,094,000 55,062,000 138,195,000
Total Revenue . ..................... $195,080,000 $194,620,000 $250,313,000
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Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Gross Profit:
Lab SUPPOTt . ..ot $46,021,000 $45,575,000  $36,040,000
Healthcare Staffing ...................... 17,708,000 17,702,000 37,753,000
Total Gross Profit . ...........oovviun.n. $63,729,000 $63,277,000 $73,793,000
Operating Income:
Lab Support .. .........c.oueiiiinin... $19,353,000 $17,309,000 $ 8,395,000
Healthcare Staffing . ..................... 8,844,000 7,202,000 10,723,000
Total Operating Income . ................ $28,197,000 $24,511,000 $19,118,000

The Company does not report total assets by segment. The following table represents identifiable
assets by business segment:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Accounts receivable:
Lab Support ......... ..., $19,467,000 $16,125,000 $13,409,000
Healthcare Staffing ...................... 9,671,000 8,324,000 19,378,000

$29,138,000 $24,449,000 $32,787,000

The Company operates internationally, with operations in the United States, Canada and Europe.
The following table represents revenues by geographic location:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Revenues:
DOMESHC -« v v e e e e e e e e $188,511,000 $181,923,000 $237,289,000
FOI€IgN . ..ot et i 6,569,000 12,697,000 13,024,000
Total REVENUES . . v v v voeee e $195,080,000 $194,620,000 $250,313,000
Years Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Long-Lived Assets:
DOMESLC .+« v e e ee e e e e $10,414,000 $8,530,000 $146,149,000
Foreign . ... 160,000 398,000 474,000
Total Long-Lived Assets .. ............... $10,574,000 $8,928,000 $146,623,000
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9. Unaudited Quarterly Resuits.

The following table presents unaudited quarterly financial information for each of the eight
quarters ended December 31, 2002. In the opinion of management, the quarterly information contains
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals, necessary for a fair presentation thereof.
The operating results for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future period.

Quarter Ended

Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2001 2001 2001 2001 2602 2002 2002 2002

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues $51,181 349,674 $46,943 $46,822 $42,111 $67,600 $74,583 $66,019

Cost of services 34,454 33,609 31,803 31,477 28566 47,443 52,732 47,779
Gross profit 16,727 16,065 15,140 15345 13,545 20,157 21,851 18,240

Selling, general and administrative expenses 9,919 9,613 9,371 9,863 9,335 13,960 16,068 15,312
Operating income 6,452 5,769 5,482 4,210 6,197 5,783 2,928

Interest income 692 648 428 444 86 104 66
Income before income taxes . . . ... ........... 7,615 7,144 6,417 5,910 4,654 6,283 5,887 2,994

Provision for income taxes . ............... 2,789 2,641 2,358 2,258 1,785 2,409 2,236 1,140
Netincome . . ... .o viii e $ 4,826 $ 4,503 $ 4,059 $ 3,652 2,869 3,874 3,651 1,854
Basic earnings per share . ... ............... $ 021§ 020 $ 018 § 016 § 013 § 015 $ 014 § 007
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding . . . .. ... .. 22,620 22,794 22,683 22,482 22,728 25929 26,555 26,381
Diluted earnings per share . . . .. ............. $ 021 % 019 $ 018 $ 016 $ 012 § 015 § 014 § 007
Weighted average number of common and common

equivalent shares outstanding . ............. 23,249 23,154 22960 22,780 22,997 26,152 26,586 26,383

10. Acquisitiomns.

On July 20, 1998, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of LabStaffers, Inc., a
provider of temporary science and medical laboratory professionals through its branches in Greensboro
and Charlotte, N.C. The LabStaffers, Inc. offices and operations acquired have been added to the
Company’s Lab Support division. This acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. Consideration for the purchase consisted of $808,000 in cash paid on the purchase date.
The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired has been allocated to
goodwill. In addition, in July 1999 and July 2000, the Company paid an additional $360,000 in cash in
accordance with the agreement bringing the total consideration for the purchase to $1,528,000 at
December 31, 2001. This contingent consideration has been added to goodwill in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. No additional contingent consideration is required in accordance with the
agreement.

On April 19, 2002, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of Health Personnel
Options Corporation (HPQO), which provides travel healthcare staffing services including nurses and
other allied healthcare professionals. The Company’s primary reason for making this acquisition was to
increase its participation in the growing travel nurse industry and expand the healthcare services it
currently provides.

The total purchase price, not including a $5,000,000 earn-out provision, was $143,196,000,
consisting of the sum of $64,043,000 in cash paid to the shareholders, debt assumed of $5,729,000, the
issuance of 3,768,978 shares of the Company’s common stock valued at $70,834,000 and $2,590,000 of
transaction-related costs. The terms of the acquisition provided for an earn-out provision if certain
operations conducted by HPO met or exceeded targeted amounts. These targeted amounts were not
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met at December 31, 2002, the determination date. As a result, $2,500,000 of cash and 281,057 shares
of common stock were returned to the Company in March 2003.

The transaction has been accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 141 and, accordingly, the
results of operations of HPO have been included with those of the Company since the date of
acquisition. The operations of HPO are reported in the Company’s Healthcare Staffing segment. The
purchase price of $143,196,000 has been allocated as follows:

CUITENE @SSEIS « v v v v v v et e et e e e et e et e e e $ 15,738,000
FIXed ASSeLS . . v vt i e e 1,819,000
Identifiable intangible assets . . . .. ... ... .. . 16,700,000
Goodwill . . ... 122,293,000

Total assets . . . oot e $156,550,000
Current lHabilities . . . . ... o $ 7,008,000
Deferred income taxes related to identifiable intangible assets . ... .. 6,346,000

Total labilities . .. ... .. .. e $ 13,354,000
Net purchase price. . .. .o v et e e e $143,196,000

This purchase price allocated to goodwill is not tax deductible. Subsequent to the initial purchase
price allocation, significant adjustments were made to reduce the identifiable intangible assets by
$7,800,000, increase income tax receivable by $2,800,000, reduce the deferred income taxes related to
identifiable intangible assets by $2,964,000 and increase goodwill by $1,575,000. The valuation of certain
items, such as provision for income taxes, sales and use tax liabilities and certain other assets remain
preliminary and are subject to adjustment.

The following unaudited proforma financial information for the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2002 assumes the HPO acquisition occurred as of the beginning of the respective periods, after
giving effect to certain adjustments. The proforma results have been prepared for comparative purposes
only and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may occur in the future or that
would have occurred had the acquisition of HPO been effected on the dates indicated.

Year Ended
December 31,
2001 2002
Revenues . ........ ..t $275,749,000  $286,205,000
NetinCome . .. ...ttt et et e e 18,703,000 13,827,000
Basic earnings pershare ........... ... ... . ... 0.71 0.50
Diluted earnings per share . . . . ................. 0.70 0.50
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART 1IE
Item 10. Executive Officers and Directors of the Registramt

Information responsive to this item will be set forth under the captions “Proposal One—Election
of Directors” and “Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in On
Assignment’s proxy statement for use in connection with its Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled
to be held on June 17, 2003 (the “2003 Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference. The
2003 Proxy Statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after
the end of On Assignment’s fiscal year.

Information regarding the Cn Assignment’s executive officers is set forth in Part I, Item 4 of this
report and is incorporated herein by reference.

Itern 11. Executive Compensation

Information responsive to this item will be set forth under the captions “Proposal One—Election
of Directors,” and “Executive Compensation and Related Information” in the 2003 Proxy Statement to
be filed within 120 days after the end of Cn Assignment’s fiscal year and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Itemn 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information responsive to this item will be set forth under the captions “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the
2003 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of On Assignment’s fiscal year and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Itern 3. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information responsive to this Item will be set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions” in the 2003 Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of On
Assignment’s fiscal year and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Within 90 days prior to the date of this report, On Assignment carried out an evaluation, under
the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on this evaluation, On Assignment’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that On Assignment’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely
alerting them to material information required to be included in On Assignment’s periodic SEC filings.
There have been no significant changes in On Assignment’s internal controls or in other factors, which
could significantly affect these controls, subsequent to the date of the On Assignment’s most recent
evaluation.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) List of documents filed as part of this report

1.

Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2001 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31,
2000, 2001 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001
and 2002

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules other than those referred to above have been omitted because they are not
applicable or not required under the instructions contained in Regulation S-X or because
the information is included elsewhere in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the three months ended December 31,
2002.
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(¢) Exhibits

Number Footnote Description

2.1 ) Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”), dated March 27, 2002, by
and among On Assignment, Inc., On Assignment Acquisition Corp., Health
Personnel Options Corporation, Timothy A. Michael, J. William DeVille and for
purposes of Sections 3.3, 6.5, 6.10 and Article VIII only of the Merger Agreement,
certain other stockholders of Health Personnel Options Corporation.

31 D Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of On
Assignment, Inc.

3.2 @) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of On Assignment, Inc.

33 3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of On Assignment, Inc.

4.1 6] Specimen Common Stock Certificate. ‘

4.2 3) Registration Rights Agreement by and among On Assignment, Inc., certain

stockholders of Health Personnel Options Corporation and for purposes of Section
3.1 only, Edwin T. Robinson, as Stockholder Representative

4.3 3) Limited Registration Rights Agreement by and among On Assignment, Inc.,
J. William DeVille, A.G. Edwards & Sons as Custodian for J. William DeVille and
Kenneth Wead.

4.4 (3) Lock-up Agreement by and between On Assignment, Inc. and J. William DeVille.

4.5 3) Lock-up Agreement by and between Cn Assignment, Inc. and Kenneth Wead.
10.1 G Form of Indemnification Agreement.
10.2 9) Restated 1987 Stock Option Plan, as amended.
10.3 ©6) 1992 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
10.9 7 Office lease dated December 7, 1993, by and between On Assignment, Inc. and

Malibu Canyon Office Partners, LP.
10.10 ® Seventh Amendment to Office Lease dated August 20, 2002.
10.11 (10) Change in Control Severance Plan of On Assignment, Inc.
10.12 (10) On Assignment, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan.

10.13 10) Master Trust Agreement for On Assignment, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan.
10.14 Employment Agreement between On Assignment, Inc. and Michael Jones dated
October 28, 2002.
10.15 Consulting Agreement between On Assignment, Inc. and Elliott Ettenberg dated
February 28, 2002.
10.16 Employment Agreement between On Assignment, Inc. and Joseph Peterson, M.D
dated June 18, 2001, as amended.
10.17 Employment Agreement between On Assignment, Inc. and Michael Tatum dated
February 28, 2002.
211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
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Number Footnote Description

241 Power of Attorney.

99.1 Statement of Joseph Peterson, M.D., Chief Executive Officer and President

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

99.2 Statement of Ronald W. Rudolph, Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief

Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

1)
@
€)

()

®)
(6)
™)
®)

©)

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 5, 2000.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30, 1993.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 3, 2002.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 33-50646) declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 21,
1992,

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2002.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
No. 33-57078) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 1993.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 24, 1994.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2002.

Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 29, 2001.

(10) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File

No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 15, 1998.

(11) Incorporated by reference from an exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File

No. 0-20540) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 1995.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this to report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in Calabasas, California on this 31st day of March 2003.

ON ASSIGNMENT, INC,

By:

Joseph Peterson, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated and on the
dates indicated.

Name Title Date

Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director (Principal Executive Officer) March 31, 2003

Joseph Peterson, M.D.

4 ‘ Executive Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 31, 2003

Ronald W, Rudolph Financial and Accounting Officer)

%*

Director March 31, 2003
Karen Brenner
*®
— Director March 31, 2003
William E. Brock
*
- Director March 31, 2003
Elliott Ettenberg
*
Director March 31, 2003
Jonathan S. Holman
Director March 31, 2003

Jeremy M. Jones

*By signature below, the undersigned, pursuant to duly authorized power of attorney filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, has signed this report on behalf of the persons indicated.

Joseph Peterson, M.D.
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ON ASSIGNMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002

Balance at

Charged to  Charged to Balance at
beginning of costs and other end
Description period expenses accounts Deductions of period
Year ended December 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts. ... $1,216,000 $699,000 § —  $(455,000) $1,460,000
Accrued workers’ compensation . . . . 1,447,000 1,078,000 — (772,000) 1,753,000
Year ended December 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . . . 1,460,000 293,000 — (86,000) 1,667,000
Accrued workers’ compensation . . . . 1,753,000 1,654,000 — (745,000) 2,662,000
Year ended December 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts. ... 1,667,000 1,045,000 601,000 (a) (822,000) 2,491,000
Accrued workers’ compensation . . . . 2,662,000 2,894,000 (27,000)(b)(2,481,000) 3,048,000

(a) Allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables acquired in Health Personnel Options Corporation

acquisition.

(b) Workers’ compensation refund acquired in Health Personnel Options Corporation acquisition.
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CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph Peterson, M.D., certify that:
I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cn Assignment, Inc,;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as cefined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Joseph Peterson, M.D.

Date: March 31, 2003 Chief Executive Officer and President
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CERTIFICATION

I, Ronald W. Rudolph, certify that:
I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of On Assignment, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 31, 2003

Ronald W. Rudolph,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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